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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SANIMA MAI HYDROPOWER UMITED

Report on the Audit of the Group and Separate Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the group and separate financial statements of Sanima Mai Hydropower
Limited (the Company). which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 Ashad
2080 (16 July 2023). the statement of profit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive
income, the statement of cash flows, the statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended for the group and the company, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting pohcies and other explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the accompanying group and separate financial statements present fairly. in all
material respects, the financial position of the Group and the Company as at 31 Ashad 2080
{16 July 2023), and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs)

Basis for apinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Audting (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditors' responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the code of ethics for professional accountants 1ssued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) together with the ethical requirements thal are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act.
2063 and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilties n accordance with these
requirements and the ICAN's Cade of Ethics for professional accountants. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matlers thal. in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the financial year ended on 31 Ashad
2080 (16 July 2023). Thase matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming cur opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these mafters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters 1o
communicate In our report.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors' report thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises lhe
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon which is expected to be made available after the date of this
auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other infarmation and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon —

PKF T. R. Upadhya & Co. Is a member of PKF Global, the network of member firms of PKF international Limited, each of! o~
which Is a separate and Independent legal entity and does not accept any responsibility or liability for the actions or dullis
inactions of any individual member or correspondent flrm(s).
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statemenls or our knowledge obtained during the course of the audit or
otherwise appears {0 be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
Statements

The management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in accordance with NFRSs. and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements
that are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matlers related to
going cancern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company of to cease operations. or has no realistic altemative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the group and separate
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can atise from
fraud or error and are considered matenal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected 1o influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit In accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional Judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit We also.

« |dentify and assess the risks of malerial misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 10 provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting 2 material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an undersianding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and. based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material uncenainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's repont to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or. if such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our augitor's repont.
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However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease {o continue as a
going concern.

*» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in 2 manner that achieves fair presentation

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters. the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal contro} that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant elhical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained all the information and explanations asked for. which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit. In our opinion, the
statement of financial position as at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023), the statement of profit or
loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the stalement of changes in equity and
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2063 and are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company and proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

To the best of our information and according to explanations given (o us and so far appeared
from our examination of the books of account of the Company necessary for the purpose of
our audit, we have not come across cases where the Board of Directors or any employees of
the Company have acted contrary to the provisions of law relating to the accounts or
committed any misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the Company relating to the
accounts in the Company

Shashi Satyal
Partner ~

PKF T R Upadhya & Co,
Chartered Accountants

Place' Kathmandu
Date: 15 Ashwin 2080

UDIN: 231003CA00008hiBje
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Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at Ashad 31, 2080

Figure i SPR

Note Group Company

FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property Plant & Equipment 4.7 11,613,498 14,570,364 11,613,498 14,570,364
Intangible Assets 48 3298015872  3.451,199,982 3,298,015.872 3,451.199.982
Right of Lise Assets 4.9 2,856,641 3,756,737 2,856,641 3.756.737
Investment in Associales 4.10 595,937.061 643,203.314 687,500,000 687.500.000
Other Investments 411 1.573,067.500 538,200,000 1.573.067,500 538,200,000
Advance towards Investment in Equity 4.12 - 35,875.000 . 35,875.060
Current Assets
Invesiment in Term Deposils 4.13 469,790.000 352.300.000 469,790,000 352,300.000
Other Financial Assels 4.14 517,921,158 §56.298.545 517,921,158 556.298.545
Other Assets 415 15,334,943 15,152,804 15.334.043 15,152,804
Inventories 4.16 23.568372 18,985,105 23.568372 18.985.105
Cash and Shont-term Deposils 417 42,572,702 73.081 444 42,572.702 73,081,444
Current Tax Assets 4.18 3459915 2948.331 3.459.915 2,948.331
Total Assels 6,554,137,662 5,7058,571,625 6,645,700,601 5.749,868,311
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings 4.19 990,504,850 1.351,450.097 990,504,850 1.351.450,007
Other Financial Liabilines 4.20 5,308,720 6,128,340 5,308.720 6,128,340
Other Provisions 3.21 3,003,241 1.375,916 3,093.241 1,375.516
Current Liabilities
Borrowings 4.19 364,156,152 334,334,356 164,156,152 334,334,356
Other Financial Liabilities 4.20 13,555,617 14,183,130 13,555.617 14,183,130
Other Liabilities 4,22 9,310,266 12,511,214 9.310.266 12,511,214
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.6.1 246,605,000 - 246,605,000 -
Total Liabilities 1,632,533,846 1,719,983.053 1,632,533.846 1,719,983,053
Equity
Share Capital 423  3,089,.251.000 3.089.251.000 3.089,251,000 3,089,251.000
Retained Eamings 4.24 1,085871.,588 886.407.774 1.177,966.232 931,134.196
Other Reserves 4.25 746,481,228 9,929,799 745,949,523 9.500,062
Total Equity 4,921,603,816  3,985,588,573 5.013,166,7558 4,029,885.259
Totsl Liabilities and Equity 6,554,137,662 S.705,571,625 6,645,700.601 5,749,868, 311

i

Nisha Kumpa =
Deputy Managef ¢ ﬁz’l‘r'pe}:"-/;_:k,‘

- e

. Pokhre!
Director

Date: 2080.06.15
Place: Kathmanduy

Grishma Ojha

General Manager

Khem Raj Lamichhane
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Dircclar

Director

Tek Raj Niraula

Chairman

As per our report of even date

Shashi $aﬂya|
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PKF T R Upadhya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

GROUP STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the Year ended Ashad 3§, 2080

Figuarc st NI'R

Note Group Company

FY 207980 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Revenue From Sale of Electricity 4.) 763,541,741 935,026,594 763,541,741 935,026,504
Plant Operating Expenses 4.2 (95.816.,406) (88.882.937) (95.816,406) (88.882.937)
Gross Profit 667,725,335 846,143,657 667,725335 846,143,657
Other Income 5.31 6,767,779 51,843 6,767.779 S1RA3
Administrative and Other Operating Expenses 4.3 {175.930.239) (175,665,257) (175.930,239)  (175.665.257)
Net Operating Profit 498,562,875 670,530,243 498,562,878 670,530,243
Financial Cosls 4.4 (123,651,747 {146,080,994) (123.651,747)  (146.080,994)
Financial Income 4.5 52,425,548 42,678,825 52,425.548 42,678.825
Profit/(Loss) before Tax & Bonus 427,336,676 567,128,074 427,336,676 567,128,074
Provision for Stafl Bonus 5.35 (8.546.734) (11.3580.469) {8.346.734) L11.350.469)
Share of Profiv(Loss) of Associates accounted for
using equity method (44.661.807) 5,915.465 - -
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 374,128,138 561.693.070 418.789,942 §55,777,608
Income Tax Expense 4.6 (11.952,525) {10.002.682) (11.952.525) {10.002.682)
Net Profit for the Year 362,175,610 551,690,387 406,837,417 545,774,922
Basic Eaming Per Share 11.72 17.86 13.17 17.67
Diluted Earning Per Share 11.72 17.86 13.17 17.67

a

lishi Kumpal.h ',} Oty;
Deputy Man.lg..r

Tuk Prasad Paudel \ - B _‘/'/-".‘-'ﬂ_
Dircc!orR\_ 4

1 K. Pokiirel
Director

Director

Date: 2080.06.15
Place: Kathmandu
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Director
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Director
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Chairman
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Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

GROUP STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For thc Year ended Ashad 31, 2080
Fugrire in NPR

Group Company

FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Profit for the year 362175610 551.690,387 406.837.417  345.774.922
a) Items that will nol be reclassified to Profit or loss
Gains /(losses) on re-measuring financial issets designated at Fair Value 986,420,000 - 986.420.000 -
through OC]
Gain/loss) on Actuarial valuation of defined henefit linhility (See noie 4.26) {778.763) 1.468.827 (778.763) 1.468.827
Income tax relating to above items (246.605.00:0) - (246.605,000) -
Nel other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to 739,036,237 1,468,827 719.036.237 | 4GR.827
profit or loss
b) Items that may be rectassified to Prafit ar Loss
Gains/(losses) on cash Now hedge - . . .

Reclassify to Profit or Loss

Net Other Caomprehensive Income that are or may be reclassified te
Profit or Loss - - - -
¢) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted as
per equity method net of tax 101,969 276,979 - -
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax 739,138,206 1,745.806 739,036,237 1.468.827
Total Comgrehensive Income For the yenr, net of tax 1,101, 313,816 553,436,194 1,145873.6584 547,243,749

As per our repornt of even date

Grishma Ojha Khem Raj Lamichhane
General Manager Dircctor / ! LW
Shashi Satyal/
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irecior Director Chartered Accountarirs

Deputy Managef
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Director

P
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1 K. Pokhrel Rajan Prgsad/Amatya Tek Raj Niraula
Director Dirdelof Chairman

Date: 2080.06.15
Place: Kathmandu
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Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

For the Ycar ended Ashad 31, 2080

Figure in NPR

Group Company
FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profil for the year (ARer Tax) 362,175.610 551.690.387 306.837.417 543.774.922
Adjustment for:
Amortization 151.214.333 151.169.363 151.214.333 151.169.362
Depreciation 3.077.974 1.363.276 3.077.974 3.565.276
Depreciation of Right of Use Assels H00.096 834.759 900.096 834,759
Provision for Tax 11.952.525 10,002,682 11.952.528 10.002.682
Payment of Tax (11.952,525) (10.002.682) {11.952,525) (10.002.682)
Employee benefit adjustment (778.763) 1.468.827 (778.763) 1.468.827
l.ease adjustment - (2.744.073) - (2.744.073)
Share of Profit/{ Loss) [rom Associates 44.661.807 (5.915.463) - -
Prior Period Adjustment - 9.718.637 - 9.718.637
Cash flow I'ro.m Operating Activities Before Changes in 561.251,057 209,787,712 S61.251.087 209,787,712
Working Capital
Cash Flow from Changes in Working Capital
(Increase) Decrease in Current Operating Assets 33,100,397 (81.753.736) 33.100.397 (81.753.736)
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Operating Liabilities (2.111.136) 3.124.238 {2.111.136) 3.124.238
Cash Flow from Operating Activities §92.240.318 631.158.213 §92,240318 631,158.213
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Capitalizaion/Purchase of Fixed Assets (121.109) (2,376.038) (121,109) {2,376,038)
(Increment)/Decrease in Intangible Assels 1.969,777 (10,837.499) 1.969,777 (10,837.499)
(Increment)/Decrease in Right of Use Assels - (4.591.496) - (4.5391.496)
Invesiment in Associates - - - -
Other Investments (48.447.500) - (48.447.500) -
Realization of Financial Assels (117.490,000) (352,254,498  (117.490,000) {352.254.498)
Advance towards Investment in Equity 33.875.000 50.875.000 35.875.000 500.875.000
Cash Flow on Investing Activities (128.213,832)  (319.,184,531)  (128,213.832) (319,184,531)

Cash Flow from Financinl Activities
Increase/(Decrease) in Borrowings

(33).123.451)

(294.649.130)

(331.123.451)

(294.649,130)

Payment of Financial Liabilities (819.619) 6.128.340 (819,619) 6.128.340
Dividend Paid (162.392,158) (14.781.106)  (162,592.158) {14.781.106)
Cash Flow (rom Financial Activities (494,5835,228)  (303.301,896)  (494.535228) (303.301,896)
Total Cash Generated in the Year (30,508,742) 8.671,786 (30,508,742) 8,671,786
Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents 73.081.444 64,409,658 73,081,444 64,409.658
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of The Year 42,572,702 73,081,444 42,572,702 73,081,444
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Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

GROUPSTATELMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Year ended Ashad 3t, 2080
Joagnre in MU

; AdJustmeais Total
Group Share Capital :::‘ :::f mcf:“ ‘::::‘:l F::!:::' due (o Sharcholders'
Asgsaclates Funds
Bulance as on Shrawan 1. 2074 2408,410,000 672,162,277 5010134 1.566,796 - - 3.487,149.208
Net Profit For the year - 851,090,387 - - - - 851,600,387
Bonus Shares (ssued 280,841,000 [2R0.841.000) - - - - -
Dividend Pad - (14.781.106) - - - - (14.781.106)
Transfer to Other Reserves -
Other Reserves (CSR) - (5,461,703) 5461703 . - - -
SR - 4,007,398 (4,007.398) - - -
Other Adjustments .
Adjustments of Lease - (2.744.073) - - . . (2.744,073)
Adjustments to Actuzarial Reserve through OC) = - - 1,468,827 - - 1,468 827
Prior Period Adjustmerit - 9,718,637 - - - - 9.718,637
Adjustment due 1o Associates (equily method) - (50,641,887} . . - 429,736 (50.212.151)
Reversal of Operating Lease Adjustment - 3.298 844 - - - - 3.298.844
Balance as on Ashad 32, 2079 3.089.251.000 886407774 6464439 3,035,623 - 429.736 3985 SH8.573
Net Profit for the year - 362,175,810 - - - - 362,175,610
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - 739.815.000 - TI9. 815,000
Dividend Pmid - (162.592.158) - - . (162.392.158)
Transfer to Other Reserves -
Other Reserves (CSR)Y - (4,068.374)  4.068374 . - -
CSR . 6,685.15)  {6.655151) -
Other Adjustments -
Adjustments (o Actuarial reserve through OC| - - - {778.763) - - {778.763)
Adjustment due to Assogiates (cquity method) - (2,706.415) . - - 101,969 (2.604.443)
Balance as on Ashad 31,2080 3.089.251,000  1,085.871.888 3877663  2.256.860  719.815.000 831,706 4.921.603.816
Adjustments Total
CoRpany Share Capital Relnined CSR Actuarial  Fair Value ik & Shareholders'
Farnings reserves reserve Reserve
Associntes Funds
Balanee as on Shrawan 1, 2078 2,808,410,000 672,162,277  S.010,134  1.566.796 - - 3.487,149.208
Nei Profit for (he year - £45,774922 - - - - 545,774,922
Bonus Shares Issued 280,841,000 (280,841,000} - - - - -
Dividend Puid - (14,781,106} - - = - (14,781.106)
T'ransfer to Other Rexerves
Other Reserves{CSR) - (5.461.703)  3.461,703 - - = -
CSK - 4,007,398 (4.007.398) - - -
Other Adjustments
Adjustments of Lease - (144073 - B - = (2.734.073)
Adjustments 1o Actuanal Reserve through OC) - - - 1.:468.827 - - 1.4b8.827
Prior Perind Adjustment - 9.718.637 - - - - 0,718,637
Reversal of Operating Lease Adjustment - 3,208,844 - - - - 3,208 844
Balance 85 on Ashad 32, 2079 3089251000 931, 1H.196 6464439 3.035.623 - 4.029.885,259
Net Profit for the year - 406837417 . - - . 406837417
(nher Comprehensive Income - - - - 739.815.000 - TIU_R15,000
Dividend Paid - (162,592.158) - - - - 1162.592,158)
Transfer 16 Other Reserves
Other Reserves (CSR) - (4.068.374) 4,068,374 - - - -
CSR - 6,635,151 (6,655,151) - - - -
Other Adjusiments -
Adjustments to Actuarial reserve through OCI - - - (778,763) - - {778.763)
Balance 25 on Ashad 32080 - 3.089.251,000  1.177,966,232 I87663  L256.860  739.815.000 - 5.013.166,755
== . As per our report of even dale

/ﬂf'[// : .
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Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

I. CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1 General

Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited (SHPC) is a Public Limited Company incorporated for the development
and operation of prospective hydropower projects in Nepal vide registration number |331/068/069 registered
with the Office of Company Registrar. Initially it was incorporated as a private limited company as on
2065/05/26 and later converted into Public Limited Company as on 2068/12/03.

The shares of the company are listed and traded on the Nepal Stock Exchange Limited (NEPSE).

The company is currently engaged in operating Hydropower Plant at Mai Khola in Tlam district with a capacity
of 29 MW (Mai hydropower plant- 22MW and Mai Cascade hydropower plant- 7 MW). The commercial
operation date of the Mai Hydropower Plant is 2074/11/14 and Maj Cascade Hydropower Plant is 2072/10/29.

The company has Swet Ganga Hydropower & Construction Limited (SGHCL) and Mathillo Mailun Khola
Jalavidyut Limited (MMKIJL) as its associate companies. The associate company Swet Ganga Hydropower &
Construction Limited is engaged in operation of hydroposwer plant at Likhu Khola in Okhaldhunga District
with a capacity of 28.1 MW (Tallo Likhu Jalavidyut Aayojana). The plant had started its commercial operation
on 17" Kartik, 2079.

Another associate company Mathillo Matlun Khola Jalavidyut Limited is engaged in developing hydropower
projects in Maijun Khola in Rasuwa District (Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalavidyut Aayojana -14.3 M\W),

1.2  Financial Statements

The Financial Statements of the group for the year ended 3 1*' Ashad 2080 comprise the Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Profit or Loss. Statement of Other Comprehensive Income. Statement of Cash Flows.
Statement of Changes in Equity, Notes 1o the Financial Statements, and Significant Accounting Policies of the
Group/Company.

1.3 Principal Activities and Operations

The principal activity of the company is to generate and sell hydroelectricity 1o Nepal Electsicity Authority.

1.4 Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the fair preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements of
SHPC as per the provisions of the Companies Act. 2006, in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS).

1.5  Approval of Financial Statements by Directors

The accompanied Financial Statements have been authorized by the Board of Disectors vide its resolution
dated lS"‘ﬁsh, ¥1n.2080. and recommended for approgl by the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost conventian, except for certain
items that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the lair value of an asset or a liability,
the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

2.2 Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statement of the group which comprises the components meationed above has been prepared
in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards comprising Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
and Nepal Accounting Standards (hereafter referred 10 as NFRS), laid down by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act. 2006.

23  Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which SHPC operates. Financial information is presented in Nepalese Rupees and
rounded off 10 the lowest cardinal number of one digit. There was no change in SHPC's presentation and
functional currency during the year under review,

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformiry with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards requires the
management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, habilities, income, and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

The most significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the Financial Statemeénts are as follows: -

3.1 Going Concern

The Board has made an assessment of SHPC's ability to continue as a going concemn and is satisfied that it
has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Fusthermore, the Board is not aware of
any material uncentainties that may cast significant doubt upon SHPC's ability to continue as a going concem
and doejfhtftlnlend*&?ﬁ\er to liquidate or to cease operations. Therefore. the Financial Statements are prepared
onag 'lp concern &ﬁ
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3.2 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position
can be derived from active markets i.e.. Level 1, they are derived from observable market data. However, if
this is not available, Level 2 and Level 3. Fair value measurement techniques have been used as per NFRS. If
this cannot be estimated. judgment is required to establish fair values.

3.3 Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company asscsses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impaimtent exists if one or more events that have occurred since the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’). have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

3.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets subject 1o impairment testing include intangible assets and property, plant and equipment.
The corporation tests material intangible assets under construction at feast annually for impairment. Assets
subject to depreciation and amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment test is performed by
comparing the carrying amount of the asset or cash generating unit (CGU) to its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use, which is the
present value of the future cash flows from an asset or CGU.

3.5  Useful Life of the Property, Plant and Equipment

SHPC reviews the residual values. useful life and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment at
each reporting date. Such life is dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the assets and also
their likely economic life. based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and
operating costs. Accordingly, depreciable lives, r¢sidual values and methods are reviewed annually using the
best information available 1o the Management.

3.6 Taxation

The SHPC is subject to income tax and judgment is required to determine the total provision for current,
deferred and other taxes due 10 the uncertainties that exist with respect Lo the interpretation of the applicability
of tax laws, at the time of preparation of these financial statements.

Uncertainties also exist with respect 1o the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount and timing
of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and the Jong-term nature and
complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the
assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments 10 tax income
and expense amounts that were tnitially recorded, and deferred tax amounts in the period in which the

determination is made. O
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e Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) because of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

3.7 Provisions for Liabilities and Contingencies

e  When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed. for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain.

e The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

o If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific 10 the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

e A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of ineeting its obligations under the contract. The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract
and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company
recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

o A contingent ltability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control
of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. Contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

e A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity.

e Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for the completion
of assets.

o Provisions. contingent liabilitics, contingent assets. and commitments are reviewed at each reporting

period.
f 2 1 .
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Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended Axhad J, 2080
Figure in NPR

Group Company
4.1 Revenoe From Sale of Electriclty FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Mai Hydropower Plaat (22MW) (See nuie 3.1.] below) 566,596,450 710533366 566596450  710.533.366
Cascade Hydropower plant (7MW) (See note 41,2 below) 196.945.201  224,493.228  196.945.291  224.493.228
Total 763,541,741 935,026,594  763.541,741 935,026,594
4.1.] Revenuc From Sales of Electricity from Mai Hydropower Plant
FY 2079-80 FY 2078-7%
Short Short supply
Month Tavoiced myper  Poated supply of Total Lmrvplced oy o Posted Rate of energy Total
PPA Rate energy PPA
Charges Churges
Shrawan 80.766.102 - . 80,766,102 82.669.871 7.742.856 - 90.412.727
Bhadra 80,844,056 - - R0.844.056 78.369.040 7.5010.892 - 85.869.931
Ashwin 79.484.367 - - 79,484,367 78,365,040 7.500.892 . 85.869.93(
Kartik 61,390,026 - - 61,290,026 60,592,383 7.258,927 - 67,851,310
Mansir 33.296.984 - - 33,296,984 43.819.636 5.435,150 - 49,254,786
Poush 42,770,564 - - 42,770,564 55.612,130 7.476,345 . 63.088.475
Magh 30.366.648 - 2232335 28134314 44,346,375 5,980,215 - 50,326,550
Falgun 26,083,621 - 4040904 22,042,747 32.815.988 4.610,511 - 37.426,498
Chaitra 34,340,366 - . 34,340.366 32.955.554 4.630.119 - 37.585.673
Buisukh 8.275.676 - 8.275.676 - 19.051.301 - - 19.051.8D1
Jestha 30.060.450 - 6.226.221  23.834.229 42.898.570 - - 42.898.570
Azadh 79,692,727 - - 79,692,727 80,897,073 - - 80.897.073
Total 587,371,585 - 20,775,136 566,596,450 652397460 58,135,907 - 710533366
4.1.2 Revenue From Siles of Electricity fram Maf Cuscade Hydropower Plant
FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Short
Mouth Invaiced as per P':j::d supply of Total [nvoiced as  Posted Rate S:?':ﬂ‘:::f" Total
PPA energy per PPA Churge;
Charpes
Shrawan 27.099.093 - . 27,099,093 28,180,467 - - 28.180.457
Bhadra 27044916 - - 27.044.916 26.764.537 - - 26,764.537
Ashwin 20,499,860 - . 26,499,860 26,764,537 - - 26.764.537
Kanik 19,.494.079 - - 19.494.079 19,494,079 - - 19.494.079
Mansir 11,616,887 - - 11,616,887 14,494 885 - - 14,494,885
Poush 14,623 460 - - 14,623,460 18,530,208 - - 18,530,208
Mugh 10,358,884 - - 10.358 884 14,791 34 - - 14,791,334
Falgun 8.866.282 - - 8.866.282 11.546.417 - - 1).546.417
Chaitra 11697551 - - V1697851 11.794.603 - - 117946005
Baisakh 2.314.962 - - 2,814.962 6.484,716 - - 6.484.716
Jesthg 10,201,652 - - 10,201,652 17.727.570 - - 17.721.570
Asadh 26.627.665 - - 26.627.663 27.919.863 - - 27519.863
Total 196,945,291 - - 196,945,291 224,493,228 - - 224.493.228
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Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Veur ended Axhad 31, 2080
Figure (m NPR

Group Compapy

4.2 Plant opecating expenses FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Generation Royalty 15,270.833 18.718.508 15.270.835 18.718.508
Plant lnsurance 15,730.161 12,352,198 15,730,161 12.352.198
Personnel expenses (See note 4.2.1) 31.130.273 28.173.133 31.130.273 28.173.133
Business promotion Expenses 152.800 234.670 152,800 234,670
Communication Expenses 231.240 228910 231,240 228910
Computer Expenses 65,124 59.050 65,124 59,050
Corpomate Social Responsibility (CSR) 6.655.15}) 4.007.398 0,655,151 4.007.298
Danution 217310 45440 217,310 45,440
Consullancy Fee 692.012 776.423 692.012 776.423

Cusiom Duly & Charges 120,634 - 120,634 -
Educational Tour. Training & Seminar - 132,580 - 132.580
Blectricity Expenses 392.96( 375.62) 392,960 375.620
Fuel. Lubricants & chermical cost during Repair 207,147 451.389 207147 451,389
Fuel & Lubricant Expenses 086.394 702,949 986.394 702.949
Governmenl Fee/Land Lease/ Rénew 2,269 1,900 2.269 4.900
Hospitality Expenses 428,808 373.859 428,808 373.859
Houskeeping Expenses 83.605 $6.238 83.605 56.238
Insurance & Taxes 225317 182,223 225317 182,225
Kitchen Goods 43010 28.130 43,110 28.130
Lab Test Expenses - 13.660 - 13,660
Medicine Expenses 27,149 36.937 27,149 36,937
Miscellaneous Expenses 51,373 96,398 51.373 96.398
Plantation 94,023 242,830 94.023 242,830
Porter/Helper/Labour Charge 185,124 249,537 185.124 249.537
Printing & Stationery Expenscs 43,204 13.430 43.204 13.430
Prolection work 51,00% 0004 SLAOOR 30,004
Repair & Maintcnance -Headworks/Civil/Canal 2.781.629 6.631.891 2.781.629 6.631.891
Repuir & Maintenance -HM 986.643 307.498 986.643 307.498
Repair & Maintenance EM 6.012.324 4.688.388 6,012.321 4.688.38%
Repair & Maintenance Transmission Line 11,358 103.642 11,238 103.642
Repuir & Maintenance Consumable Goods 471.383 197815 471.383 197.815
Repair & Maintenance Other 69,321 25(),952 69321 250,952
Repair & Maintenance Oftice Building 394.806 1.021.156 394.806 1.021.156
Repair & Maintenance Vehicles 3.454 350 800.121 1.494.350 R0U.121
Safety htems 191.000 15.600 191,000 15.600
Securily Expenses 2.962,113 2.699.533 2962.113 2,699,531
Site Office Consumable Goods 163.908 403.789 363.908 403.789
Staff Insurance 232,458 163.146 232,438 163.146
Salf Welfare Expenses 2,800,492 2.299.873 2,800,492 2.299.873
Transportation Expenses 643615 507,116 643.615 507,116
Travelling Expenses 1,164,620 1.039.714 1,164,620 1.039.714
Vehicle Rencw und Taxos 149,359 166,285 149.359 166.285
Total 95,816,406 88.882,937 95816406 88.882.937
4.2.{ Personnel expenses FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Salary & allowance 33,757.249 21,884.671 23.757.249 21.884.671
Suoclal Security Fund 2.256.798 2,044,196 22356.798 2,044,196
Festival Allowance 1.562.667 R46.300 1.562.667 R46.300
Over Time Allowance 551378 600,724 3351374 640,724
l.eave Allowance 2.424.056 2.202.998 2.424.056 2.202.998
Lcave Allowance Expenses-Provision X78.125 544,245 578.125 594,245

. Total 31.130.273 28,173,133 31.130.273 28,173,133
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Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended Ashad 31, 2080

Flgure in NPR

Group Compiany

4.3 Administrative and Other operating expenses FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Amartization of project Imangibles (See nates 4.8) 151.214,333 151.169.363 151,214333 151.169.3613
Depreciation Charges (See¢ notex 3.7) 3.077.974 31.565.276 3077974 1.565.276
Depreciation Charges For ROU Asscls (See noles 4.9) 900.096 834.759 900,096 R34.759
Persannel expenses (See note 4.3.1 belomw) 10.340,029 9.331.71t 10,340.029 9.331.7)1%
Bunk commission and charges 39.86% 12,18t 39.869 12181
Capacily Royalty 2,900,000 2,900.000 2,900.000 2.900.000
Acluarial Fee 16,287 16,287 16,287 16.287
AGM Expenses 604,852 647.663 604,852 647,663
Advertising and Publicity 136,100 141,075 136,100 141,075
Audit Expenses 2).384 50.289 21.384 50.289
Audit Fee 220,350 209.050 220,350 309,050
Books/Newspaper/Magazine 14,600 14.600 14.600 14,600
Business Promotion Expenscs 507.768 313.236 507.768 313.226
Communication Expenses 148.796 82.106 148,796 82.106
Communicalion Expenses (BOD) 168,000 16R.000 168.000 168 000
Computer & Software Maintenance Expenses 78.722 53.950 78.722 54950
Consultancy Fee 242,306 3.744 242,306 3.744
Donalion 200,000 100.000 200.000 134,000
Educational Tour/ Training & Seminar 111,690 54.010 111.690 54.010
Electricily/Water/Cleaning 391.280 421017 391.280 S20017
Fuel & Lubricanis 516,017 3128213 s16.01? 228213
PES Expenses (Payment for Environmenial Scrvice) 40,686 54.612 40.686 54.612
Hospitality Expenses 104.935 78.500 104.935 78.500
Insurance & Taxes 26.296 27.623 26,296 27.623
l.easchold property maintenance 157,433 173.511 157,433 173.5)1
L.cpat Expenses - 50.000 - S0.000
Meeting Expenses 121.905 39.465 121,905 39465
Mueting Fee 54.000 11,770 54.000 31.770
Meeling Fee (BOD) 616,000 128.000 6)6.000 328.000
Membership Fees & Rencwal 153,000 91.085 153,000 91.085
Miscellancous Expeases 49.863 29.082 49363 29,082
Occupationnl Health & Salety Expenses 3.200 5.620 3.200 5.620
OfYice consumable goods 11.530 17.139 11.530 17.139
Office Rent - 72930 - 72930
Printing & Stationery 67312 69.443 67.312 69.443
Repair & maintenance Others - 18.500 . 18.500
Repair & Mainienance Vehicle (HO) 165.749 172.501 165.749 172,501
StafT Insurance (HO) 35435 26.967 35425 26.967
Regulation Fee and Charges 674,440 1.777.979 674.440 1,777.979
StafT Refreshment/Picnic/Sports 417.674 313.744 417,674 313,744
Transpontation & )ares 18.010 12.300 18.010 12300
Vehicle Renewal and Taxes 44.762 58.300 44,762 58,300
Impairment of Receivables (See nores 5.30) 1.000.000 944 899 1.000.000 944.899
Foreign Exchange luctuation (Gain)/Loss 20,565 13.780 20.565 13,780
Fines & Penalties 18,250 592,000 18,250 592.000
Credit rating Fee 176.280 215.152 176,280 215,152

Disposal of Fixed Assets (See noies 5.25) 92,661 - 92,661 -
Websile Maintenance Expenses 9.799 32.724 9.799 32,724
Total 175,930,239 175.665.257 175,930,239 175,665,257

— Sel SI9 S GTEHRY GUT 3068/ 00




& Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited ‘

Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Yexrr ended Ashad 31, 2080

Figure in NI'R
_ Group Company
4.3.1 Personnel expenses FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Salary & allowance 8.331.831 7.574.738 8.331.831 7.574.738
Social Sccurity Fund 1.67% 841840 760.800 843,840 760,800
Festival Allowance 586.000 313.617 586.000 313.617
Leave Allowance 188.876 125810 188.876 125.810
Leave Allowance Expenses-Provision 389.482 556.745 389.482 556,745
Total 10,340,029 9.331,711 10,340.029 9.331.711
Financial Costs FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-7%
Intercst on Bank Loan (OD) 6.679 125 6.679 123
Interest on Term Loan (MM P) 81.111.675 96.992.04 | 81,111.675 96,992,011
Interest on Term Loan (MCHP) 40.011.812 46,049,561 40.011.812 46.049.561
Interesl expenses relating to Lease (See Notes 4.9) 489.957 510,557 489.957 510.557
Bank Commission 2,031.624 2,528,710 2,031,624 2.528.710
Total 123,651,747 146,080,994 123,651,747 146,080,994
Financial Income FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Income From Interest on Call deposil 4,720,215 2.668.096 4.720.215 2.668.096
Income From Interest on Term deposit 47.705.332 25.516.209 47.705.332 25.516.209
Interest Income From Other - 14.494.52) - 14,494,521
Total 52,425,548 42.678.825 §2.425.548 42,678,825
[ncome tax expense FY 207980 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Current Tax Expenses
Current Tax on profits for the year 11.926.333 10.002.682 11.926.333 10.002.682
Adjustments for under provision in prior periods 26.192 - 26.192 -
Delerred Tax Income/(Expense) - - - -
Total 11,952,528 10.002.682 11,952,525 10.002.682
4.6.1 Deferred Tax Income/(Expense)
Book Carrying Temporary Deferred Tax
Particulars Tax Base . Rate Assels/
amount difference .
(Liabilities)
Inves!menl 1.519.620,000 533,200,000 (986,420 000) 25% (246,605,000)
== c= B 7 )
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| % Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited

Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As ut Ashad 31,2080

4.9 Right of Use Asscls (Group/Compzny)

Figure in NPR

Particulars

AS af Shrawsan 1, 2078 Depreciation for the year As ai Ashad 32, 2079

Land Lease lor Sanima Mai Project 1.2432203 55.967 1,287.237
Land Lease for Sanima Mai Cascade Project 300,221 18.764 281.458
Land Lease for Transmission Line 661,308 41332 619,976
Head Oflice Building 2,286,763 718.697 1,568.066
Total 4,591,496 834,759 3,756,737
Particulars As st Shrawan 1, 2079 Depreciation for the year As at Ashad 31,2080
Land Lease for Sanima Mai Project 1.287.237 55.967 1.231.270
Land Lease for Sanima Mai Cascade Project 281,458 18.764 162.694
Land Lease for Transmission Line 619.976 41.332 578.644
Head Oflice Building 1.568.066 784.033 784,032
Total 3.756.737 900,096 2,856,641
Lenxe Lisbilitiex:
Particulars Al Shrawaa |, 2078 Inferest Expenses (+) Lease Payment (-) At Ashad 32, 2079
Land Lease for Ssnima Mai Project 3.026.200 234.530 162.680 3.098.05)
(.and Lesse for Sanima Mai Cascade Project 631,528 48.943 37.641 642,827
Land Lease for Transmission Line 1.391.081 107.809 82914 1.415.976
Head Office Building 2.286.763 119,274 747,000 1.639.038
Total 735,569 510,557 1,030,238 6.815.891
Particulars At Shrawan 1, 2079 Interest Expenses (+)  Lease Pavment (-) Al Astiad 31, 2080
I.and Lease for Sanima Mai Project 3,098.051 240.099 178.947 3.159.202
|.and Lease for Sanima Mai Cascade Project 642,827 49,819 4),406 651.240
Land lease for Transmission Line 1,415,978 109,738 91,208 1.434.508
Head Office Building 1,659,038 90.301 865,950 883,389
Total 6,815,891 489,957 1,177,508 6,128,340
Non- Current Lease Liability
Particulsrs As on Ashadh 31,2080 As on Ashudh 32, 2079
Land Lease for Sanima Mai Project 3.207.198 3.159.202
Land Lease for Sanima Mai Cascade Project 636,165 651.240
Land Lease (or Transmission Line 1,445.357 1,434,508
Hend OfTice Building - 883,389
Total 5,308,720 6,128,340
Current Lesse Liabllity
Particulars As on Ashadh 31, 2080  As on Ashadh 32, 2079
l.und Lease for Sanima Mai Project (47.996) (61,151)
Land Lease (or Sanima Mai Cascade Project (4.925) (8.414)
Land Lease for Transmission Line (10.848) {18.533)
Head Office Building 883,389 775.649
Total 819,619 687.552
Interest Expenses for Lease Liabilities
Particulars 2079/80 2078779
Land Lease for Sanima Mat Project 240,099 234,530
l.and Lease for Sanima Mai Cascade Project 49.819 48.943
Land Lease for Transmission Line 109,738 107.809
Head Offiee Building 90.301 119,274
Total 489,957 510,557
Lease Payments for Lease Liabilities
Particulars 2079/30 2078/79
t.and Lease for Sanima Mal Project 178.947 162.680
Land Lease for Sanima Mai Cascade Project 41406 37.641
)and l.ease for Transmission Line 91.205 82914
Head Office Building 865.950 747.000
Total 1,030,235

1,177,508
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Sanima Mat Hydropower Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at Ashud 31. 2080

Jigure m NI'R

4.10 Investments in Associates (See Notex §.7) Group Company
[nvestment in associates FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Listed Associntes
Swet Ganga Hydropower & Consiruction Lid. 3172.901.349 414,863,164 450.000,000 450.000.000
Unllsted Assoclates
Mathillo Msilun Khols Jalavidhyut [ad. 223.035.712 228.330.151 237.500.000 237.500.000
Total 595.937.061 643,203 314 687.500.000 687,500,000
Investment in Associates ‘FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Caat Fair Value Cost Falr Value
Swel Ganga Hydropower & Construction Lid. {4.500.000
shares of Rs. 100 cach at cost and MV: Rx. 262.70 cach) 450,000,000 1.182.130.000 450.000.000 430.000.000
Mathillo Magilun Khola Jalavidhyot Ltd. (2.375.000 shares of 237.500.000 237.500.000 237.500.000 237,500,000
Rs, 100 cach)
Total 687.500.000 1.419.650.000 687.500,000 687.500.000
Investment in Associates (Equity Method) FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Equity Equity
Swel Ganga Hydropower & Construction Lid. 372.901.349 4)4.863.164
Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalavidhyat Lid. 223,035,712 228.340.151
Total 595,937,061 643,203 314
4,11 Other Investments (Se¢ Note 5.6.3)
Investments measured at Fair Value through Other FY 207980 FY 2078.79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078.79
Comgprehensive Income
Listed Other Investment
Sanima Middle Tamory Hydropower Lid, ).519.620.000 533.200.000 1.519,620,000 533.200.000
Unlisted Other tnvestment
Sanima Jum Hydropower L1d. 33,447,500 - 33,447,500 -
Bavari Construction PvL Lid. 20.000.000 5.000.000 20.000.0600 5.000.000
Total 1.573.067,500 $38.200,000  1,573,067.500 §38.200.000
4.12  Advance towards Investment in Equity FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Sanima Jom Hydropower Lid. - 28.500,000 - 28.500.000
Bavari Construction Pvi. L\d. - 7.375.000 7.375.000
Tatal - 35.875.000 34,875.000
4.13 Investment in Term Deposits (See Note 5.6.3)
FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Commercial Banks Fixed Deposits 469,790,000 352,300,000 469.790.000 352.300.000
Total 469,790,000 352,300,000 469,790,000 352,300,000
4.14 Other Financial Assets
Current Other Financial Assets FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Advance 1o Other 1.354911 1.733.336 1.354.011 1.733.336
Accrued Interest (Receivables) RARINEE 3.598.454 2,051,144 3.598.454
Stall Advances 1.120.850 1.334.250 1.120.850 1.331.250
Trade Debtors -NEA (See note 5.29) 426.318.721 455,450,201 426.378,721 455.450201
Restricted Bank Balance - Capex Reserve (See nnte 5.20.1) 71.528.384 71.273.304 71.528.884 71.273.304
Restricted Bank Balance - O&M Reserve (See nore 5.20.2) 15.386.648 22 912,000 15,386,648 22.912.000
Total $17.921.158 £56.298,545 §17,921,158 §56,298.545
418 Other Assets
Current Other Assets FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
L.C Deposit (Margin) 879.461 879.461 879.46! 879.46)
Miscellancous Deposil £12,003 112.003 112.003 112,003
Prepaid Insurance 12,317.763 12.248.437 12.317.763 12.248.437
Prepaid Expenses- 2.025.716 1,912,903 2.025.716 1.912,903
s —~ " Total 15.334.943 15,152,804 15334943 [5,152.804
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| ’,mmi . Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited

Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO GROUP FINANCJAL STATEMENTS
AS Rt Ashad 31, 2080

Figure in NPK
Group Company
4.16 Inventories FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-30 FY 2078-79

Bearing /Transformer Oil 419.486 419.486 419.486 419.486
Gabion Box Stock 1,448,049 1.441.804 1,448.049 }.441.804
Hydro-Mechaaical Stock 1.061.680 841.716 1.061.680 841.716

Other Maierials 24.35¢ 130.229 24,351 130.229

Spare Pants of Electromexhanical Equipment 20.614.805 16.151.870 20.614.805 16.151.870

Total 23,568,372 18.985.108 23,568372 18.985.108

4.17  Cash and short-term depaosits

Cash and shor term deposits includes cash and bank balance and olher shoart 1erm deposits ol financial assets having maturity of 3 months or
less.

FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79

Caxh Balance 6.570 5.977 6.570 5.977

Bank Balance 42,566,132 43.075.467 42.566.132 43,075,467
Commercial Banks Fixed Deposits (upto 3 months term) - 30.000,000 - 30.000.000

Total 42,572,702 73,081,444 42,572,702 73.081.444

4.18  Current Tax Assets / (Liablities) FY 2079-80 FY 207879 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
income Tax Linbilitios {11.952.525) (10.002.682) {11.952.325) {10.002.682)
Advance Tex 15,412,440 12951013 15.412.440 12951013

Net Tax Assets/(Liabilivy) J.459.915 294833 3,459.915 2,948,331
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& Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited ]

Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Borrowings

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Figure m NPR

This includes the amount bosrowed by the Company from Banks as a (oan and is ireated s Nnancial labilitics a1 amortized cost. The book
cosls have becen taken as decmed amortized cost for NFRS purpose. AIR on loan, if any, is shown as par of borrowings.

Group Company

4.19.1 Current Borrowings FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 207980 FY 2078-79
Consortium Term Loan (Mai Hydrpower Progect) 260.429,152 241,725,356 260,429,152 241,725,356
Consortium Term Loan (Mai Cascade Hydropower Project) 103.727.000 92.609.000 103.727.000 92.609.000
Totsa) 364,156,152 334,334,356 364,156,152 334,334,356

4.19.2 Noo-Current Borrowings FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 Y 2079-80 FY 207879
Consortium Term Loan (Mai Hvdrpower Project) 836,449.850 893.668.097 636,449,850 893.668.097
Consortium Term Loan (Mai Cascade Hydropower Project) 354.055.000 157.782.000 354.055.000 457.782.000
Total 990,504,850  1.351.450,097 990,504.850  1.351.450.097

4.20 Other Financial Liabilities

4.20.1 Current Other Financial Linbilities FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Audit Fee Payabte 220350 209.050 220.350 209.050
Advance From Others - 470.000 - §70.000
Cash Dividend Payable 39340 54.548 39.340 54.54%
Lease Liabilities (See Nates 4.9) 819.619 687.552 R19.619 687.552

Leave Allowance Payable 2,017.051 1,655,974 2.017.051 1.655.974
Overtime Allowance Payable 1.530 25,995 1.530 25,995
Relention Moncy Payable 664,572 931.086 664.572 933.085
Royalty Payable 8,532,236 0.112.832 8,532,236 9.)12.332
Staff Depasit A/C 355,820 205,808 355.820 205.808
Payable to Others 888.8§2 816.277 888.812 816.277
Acluary Fee paysble 16,287 12.008 16,287 12,008
Total 13,555,617 14,183,130 13,555,617 14,183,130

4,20.2 Non Current Other Financial Liabilities FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Lease Liability (See Notes 4.9) 5,308.720 6.128.340 5,308,720 6.128.340
Total 5.308.720 6,128.340 5308.720 6,128,340

4.21 Other Provisions (See note 4,26) FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Employees Leave Fund 3.093.241 1375.916 3.093.24) 1.375916
Total 3,093,241 1375916 3,093,241 1375916

4.22  Other Liablities

Current Other Liabilities FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-719
Provisions Staff Bonus 8.546.734 11.350.469 8.546,734 11.350.469
Withholding Tax Payable 315.210 470,736 315.210 470.736
Social Security Fund Payable 424240 424,240 424,240 424,240
StafT Payable 24,082 265,770 24.082 265.770
Total 9,310,266 12,511,214 9,310,266 12,511,214
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Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As st Axhad 31, 2080

Figure in NPR
Group Company
423 Share Capital FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80. FY 2078-79
Authorised Share Capital i
(35,000,000 Equity Shares al NPR 100 cach) 3.500.000.000  1.500.000.000 3.500.000.000  3.500,000.001
Issued Share Capital -
(30.892.510 quily Shares at NPR 100 cach) 3.U89.251.000 J.0B9.251.000 3.089.251.000  3.089.231.000
Z“(',fjs‘;g.i?g’;ﬁf;;'mm & NPR 100 cach) 3.089.251.000  3.089.251.000  3.089.251.000  3.089.25).000
Ordinary Shares as al st Shrawan 3,089.251,000 2.808.410,000 3.089,251.000 2.808,410.000
Add: Bonus Shares [ssucd - 280.841,000 - 280,841,000
Shares as at 31st Ashad 3,089.251,000  3,089,251,000 3.089.251,000 3.089,251,000
4.23.1 Reconciliation of No. of Shares FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Ordinary Shares as a( tst Shrawan 30.892.510 28,084,100 30.892,510 28.084.100
Add: Bonus Shares Issued - 2,808,410 - 2.808.410
Ordinary Shares as at J1st Ashad 30,892,510 30,892.510 30,892,510 30,892,510
4.24 Relained Earnings FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Retained Esmings (Opening) 886.407.774 672162277 Q31,134,196 672,162,277
Profit for the year 362.175.610 551.690.187 406.837.4)7 545.774.922
[ssnance of Bonus Share (-) - (280.841.000) - (280.841.000)
Cash Dividend (-) (162,592,158) (14.781.106) (162.592,158) (14.781.106)
Provision for CSR (4.068,374) {5.461.703) (4.068.374) (5.461.703)
CSR Expenses 6.655.151 4,007.398 6.655.151 4.007.398
Lease Adjustment as per NFRS 16 F (2.744.073) : (2.744.073)
Prior Period Adjusiment 9.718.637 9.718.637
Reversal of Operating Lease Adjustment - 3.298.844 3.298.844
Adjusiments due to Associates (2.706.415) (50.641.887) - -
Total 1,085.871.588 886,407,774 1,177,966.232 931,134,196
4.25 Other Reserves FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
Acturial reserve 2.256.860 3.035.623 2.256.860 3.035.623
Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve 3,877,663 6,464,439 3.877.663 6.464.439
Fair Value Reserve 739.815.000 . 739.815.000
Adjustments duc 10 Associgles 531.706 429.736 - -
Total  746.481,228 9,929,799 745,949,523 9,500,062
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Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at Ashad 31, 2080

4.26. Employee Benefits:
The Nepal Accounting Standard 19 on "Employec Benefits” issued by Ihe Institute of Chactered Accountants of Nepal has been
adopted by the Company as under:

Dcflned Benefit plans in respect of Leave Encashment - as per actuarial valuation Figure in NPR
2079-80 207879
Leave Encashment  Leave Encashment
(Nor-Funded) (Non-Funded)
| (Income) Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss
Interest Cost 133,990 178.705
Current Service Cost 839,479 814,607
Total 973,469 593 311
2 (Income)/Expenses Recopnized In Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss 778.761 (1.468.827)
Retwmn on Plan Assets (Greater)/Lesser than discounl mate - -
E:gnses recogni’ud in Other Comprehensive Income 778,763 {1.468,827)
3 Change in Present Value Obligations
PV of Obligation at beginning of the year 1.375.916 1.851.431
Interest Cost 133,990 178.705
Current Service Cost 839,479 814,607
Acquisitions (credit)/ cos! - -
Benefit paid (34,907) -
Acluarial (Gain)/ Loss 778,763 (1,468.827)
Liabilitv at the end of the year 3,093,24) 1,375,916

4 Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Beginning of the Year - -
Acquisition Adjustment - -
Interest Income on Plan Asscts -
Fair Value of Plan Assets at End of the Year - -

2079-80 2078-79
Leave Encashment  Leave Encashment
(Non-Funded) (Non-Funded)
5 Amount Recognized in Statement of Financial Position
Present Value of Obligations at Year End 3.093,24} 1,375.916
Fair Value of Plan Asscls at Yesr End - .
Funded Status (3,093,241) (1,375,916)
Unrecognised Acturial (Gain)/Loss a1 Year End
Unrecopnised Past Service Cost
Net AsseU(L1ability) Recognised in Statement of Financiel Position (3,093,241) (1,375,916)
6 Actuarial Assumptions
Discount rate 10% 10%
Salary escalation rate 12% 12%
Retirement age 58 58
Remaining Working Life 8.88 0.18
Nepali Assurcd Nepali Assured
Monality Lives Monality Lives Mortality
: (2009) (2009)
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Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at Ashad 31, 2080

4.27: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Relationship

Related Parties

Company With Common Directors

Sapima Bank Limited

Sanimu Jum Hydropower Lid.

Sanimu Hydro & Cogineering Pvt. Lid.

Akama Hovel Pvi. Lid.
Sanima Pvt, Lid.
Sanima Fousndation

Bavari Construction Pvi, Lid.

Associares

Swet Ganga Hydroposwer and Construction Limited
Malhilo Mailun Khola Jalvidyut Company Limiicd

Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

According to Nepal Financia) Reporting Standard (NFRS) - NAS 24 (Retated Party Disclosures) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
ar¢ those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the aclivitics of the =nfily. Such KMPs include
the Board of Directors of the company (including both Executive and Non Executive Directors) and ey employces who are holding

direcrorship in Subsidiary compznies of the SHPC.

KMPs of the SHPC includes members of Board of Direclors and Chief Executive Officer namety:

Mr. Tek Raj Niraula

Ms. Simran Kvmari Bhimsaria
Mr. Khein Raj Lamichhane
Mr. Tuk Prasad Paude)

Mr. Mahesh Chimire

Mr. Bharal Kumar Pokhrel

Dr. Rajan Prasad Amatyva

Mr. Grishma Ojha

Chairman
Direclor

Dircclor

Director

Dircctor

Dircclor

Director

General Manager

The following provides expanses incurred for KMPs of SHPC: Figure in NPR
Nature of Expenses FY2075-80 FY2078-79
Directors® fees 616.000 328.000
Commuanication Expenses 168,000 168.000
Total 784,000 496.000
Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs/GM) FY2079-80 FY2078-79
For the vear ended
Short erm employec benefits 4,399,466 3.616.051
Posl-employment benefils 307,200 279.120
Total 4,706,666 3895171
Transactions with Related parties, if any FY2079-80 FY2078-79
Deposits & invesimenis
fnvestment
Swet Ganga Hydropower & Conslruction L13. (al cost) 450,000.000 450.000.000
Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyui Ltd. (a1 cost) 237,500.000 237.500.000
Sanima Jum Hydropower Lid. (al cosl) 33.447.500 -
Bavari Construction Pvt.Ltd. (at cost) 20,000,000 5.000.000
Total 740,947.500 692,500,000
Cu
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Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited
Katbmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at Ashad 31, 2080

4.27: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Deposits & investments FY2079-80 FY2078-79
Sanima Bank Ltd.- Term Deposit 44,500,000 44,500.000
Sanima Bank- Call account 2.704.930 618.146
Sanima Bank- Current Account 1.000 335872
Sanima Bank- Site Current Accounl 272,124 -

Total 47,478,054 45,454,018

Advance payment for Equity shares FY2079-80 FY2078-79

Sanima Jum Hydropower Lad. - 28,500.000
Bavari Construction Pvt. Ltd. 7.375,000

Total - 35.875.000

Expenses & fees paid FY2079-80 FY2078-79

Sanima Hydro & Engineering Pvl. Ltd. 765.007 92).460

Total 765.007 921.460

Expenses & Oatstanding balance FY2079-80 FY2078-79

Sanima Pvt. Ltd.

Rent Paid 865.950 819.930

Renl Payable - -

Total 865.950 819,930

Akama Hote! Pvt. Ltd.

Expenses paid during meeling of SHPC 278.790 165.31)

Payable - -

Total 278,790 165311
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Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNT

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
Financial Statements, and deviations if any have been disclosed accordingly.

5.1 Curreat versus Non-Current Classification
The group presents assets and liabitities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. The group classifies an asset as current when it is:
- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected 1o be realized within twelve months after the reporting period or
- Cash or cash equivalent unjess restricted from being exchanged or used to sertle a liability for at
least twelve months afier the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

The group classifies a liability as current when:
- Itisexpecied to be settled in the normal operating cycle
- ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading
[t is due 10 be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the lrability for al least twelve months
afier the reporting period
The group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

5.2 Property, plant, and equipment

Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) are stated at cost of acquisition or constniction fess accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses if any.

Cost includes inward freight, duties and taxes. and incidental expenses related to acquisition. Expenses
capitalized also include applicable borrowing cosis for qualifying assets if any. All upgradation/
enhancements are charged off as revenue expenditure unless they bring similar significant additional
benefits. Subsequently, PPE can be measured on the Cost model or the Revaluation model.

5.2.1 Cost model

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation less accumulated impairment losses.

5.2.2 Revaluation model

The group has not applied the revaluation modef to any class of freehold land and buildings or other assers.

On revaluation of an asset, any increase in the carrying amount is recognized in ‘Other comprehensive
income” and accumulated in equity. under capttal reserve or used to reverse a previous revaluation decrease
relating to the same asset, which was charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss. In this circumstance, the
increase is recognized as income (o the extent of previous write down. Any decrease in the carrying amount
is recognized as an expensc in the Statement of Profit or Loss or debited to the Other Comprehensive income
to the extent of any credit balance existing in the capial reserve in respect of that asset. The decrease
recogmzed in chcr comprehen5|ve income reduces the amount accumulated in equity under capital reserves.

— STl Y ITURU AT 3068 /0G0




& Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited |é_

Any balance remaining in the revaluation reserve in respect of an asset is transferred directly to retained
eamings on retirement or disposal of the asset.

An jtem of property. plant. and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to artse from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or Joss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property. plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the casrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive [ncome.

The group has adopted Cost model for property, plant & equipment. Carrying amount of assets has been
assumed as fair value.

Capital Work in Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings. major plant and
machinery and system development, awaiting capitalization as PPE or Intangible assets. Capital work-in-
progress would be transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use, i.e., when it is in the location
and condition necessary for it 1o be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Capital
work-in-progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment Josses.

53 Intangible Assets

Intangible Assels that the group controls and from which it expects future economic benefits are capitalized
upon acquisition and initially measured at cost comprising the purchase price (including import duties and
non-refundable 1axes) and directly attributable costs 1o prepare the asset for its intended use.

The useful life of an intangible asset is considered finite where the rights to such assets are limited 10 a
specified period of time by contract or law (e.g.. licenses) or the likelihood of technical, technological
obsolescence (e.g.. computer software). If there are no such limitations, the useful life is taken to be
indefinite.

Intangibie assets that have finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives by the straight-line
method unless it is practical to reliably determine the pattern of benefits arising from the asset. An intangible
asset with an indefinite useful life is not amortized.

Software is amortized over a period of five years.

All intangible assets are tested for impairment. Amortization expenses and impairment losses and reversal
of impairment losses are taken to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. Thus,
after initial recognition. an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortization and / or
impairment losses.

Intangible assets include Computer application and Service concession arrangements (in accordance with
IFRIC 12). Intangible asset (Computer application) includes the cost of computer application development
including software, direct charges for labor, materials. contracted services and borrowing costs as per
NAS 23.

Service concession arrangements of SHPC include Mai Hydropower Plant (22MW) and Cascade
Hydropower Plant (7MW). Service concession arrangements are amortized over the contractual period of 30
years as per the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) of SHPC, As per PPA. the life of Mai Hydropower Plant
isupto B.S.2101/11/13 and Mai Cascade Power Plant is B.S. 2102/10/28.

Gains or losses arising from de-recogyition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal-proeeeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss when theasset15.derecpgni
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5.4 Right of Use Assets

A lease is a contract in which the right of use an asset (the leased asset) is granted for an agreed-upon period
in return for consideration. The group has recognized at present value assets for the right of use reccived and
Jiabilities for the payment obligation entered into for all leases. Lease liabilities include the following lease
payments:

= Fixed payments, less lease incentives offered by the lessor

» Variable payment linked to an index or interest rate

» Expected residual payment from residual value guarantees

+ The exercise price of call options when exercise is estimated to be sufTiciently likely and

» Contractual penaliies for the termination of lease if the lease term reflects the exercise of tepminable
option

Lease payments are discounted at the implicit interest rate underlying the lease to the extent that this can be
determined. Otherwise. discounting is at the incremental borrowing rate. The Group lease discount rate has
been considered for the reporting period.

Right of Use assets are measured at cost, which comprises the following:

¢ Lease liabilities,

» Lease payments made at or prior to delivery, less lease incentives received,
* Initial Direct Costs, and

s Restoration Obligations.

Right of Use assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost. They are depreciated over the term of the
jease using the straight-line method.

5.5 Service Concession Arrangements

{FRIC 12 on Service Concession arrangements provides thal the Operator’s righl over the infrastructure
assets cannot be recognized as property, plant, and equipment (PPE) of the operator.

This Interpretation applies to public-to-private service concession arrangements if:

(a) The grantor controls or regulates what services the operator must provide with the infrastructure, to
whom it must provide them, and at what price; and

(b) The grantor contsols—through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise-any significant residual
interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement.

The infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire vseful life (whole
of life assets) is within the scope of this Interpretation if the following conditions satisfies. This Interpretation
applies to both:

(a) infrastructurc that the operator constructs or acquires from a third party for the purpose of the service
arrangement; and

(b) The grantor controls-through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise-any significant residual
interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement.

The consideration received by the operator is recognized at fair value. Consideration may result in the
recognition of a financial asset or an intangible asset.

AR
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The Financial asset model is used when the company, being an operator, has an unconditional contractual
right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction
services, Unconditional contractual right is established when the grantor contraciuaily guarantees to pay the
operator (a) specific or determinable amount: (b) the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from the
users of the public services and specified or determinable amounts.

55.1 Recognition as a financial asset

5.5.2 Recognition as an intangible asset

The intangible asset mode] is used to the extent that the SHPC. being an operator. receives a right (a license)
to charge users of the public service. A right to charge users of public services is not an vnconditional right
to receive cash because the amounts are contingent on 1o the exteat that public uses the services. Both rypes
of arrangements may exist within a single contract to the extent that the grantor has given an unconditional
guarantee of payment for the construction and the operation i.e., considered as a financial asset and to the
extent that the operator has to rely on the public using the service in order to obtain payment, the operation
has an intangible asset.

The Company manages concession arrangements which include power supply from its two hydropower
plants namely Mai Hydropower Plant (22M W) and Mai Cascade Hydropower Plant (7MW). The Company
maintains and services the infrastructure during the concession period. The concession period for Mai
Hydropower Plant is up to B.S. 2101/11/13 and Mai Cascade Power Plant is B.S. 2102/10/28. These
concession arrangements set out rights and obligations related to the infrastructure and the services to be
provided 1o the public user through Nepal Electricity Authority. The right to consideration gives rise to an
intangible assel and accordingly, the intangible asset model is applied.

5,6 Financial Instruments
5.6.1 Date of Recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.c.. the date that SHPC becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades. Regular way trade
means purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

5.6.2 Recognition and Initial Measurement of Financial Instraments

The classification of financial instruments at the initial recognition depends on their purpose and
characteristics and the management’s intention in acquiring them. All financial instruments are measured
initially at their fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to acquisition or issue of such
financial instruments except in the case of such financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss. Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are dealt with in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

5.63 Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assels
At its inception, a financial asset is classified into one of the following:

a. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

i. Financial assets held (or trading

ii.  Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
b. Held to Maturity Financial Assets
c. Loans and Receivables

d. Financial assets available for sale
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5.6.3.a Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit or lass il it is held for trading or is designated upon
initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.

5.6.3.a(i) Financial Assets Held for Trading

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term or held as a part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit or
position taking. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by SHPC that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships.

Financial assets held for trading are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognized in *Fair value gains and losses. Dividend income is recarded in ‘Other [ncome’
when the right to receive the payment has been established. Interest income eamed from financial assets held
for trading is recorded under *Other lncome’ using the effective interest rate.

SHPC evaluates its held for trading asset portfolio, other than derivatives, to determine whether the intention
1o sell them in the near future is still appropriate. When SHPC is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inaclive markets and management’s intention (o sell them in the foreseeable future significantly changes,
SHPC may elect to reclassify these financial asscts.

Financial assets held for trading include instruments such as govemment securitics and equity instruments
that have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

5.6.3. a (ii) Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
SHPC designates financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the following circumstances;

I. Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces measurement of recognition inconsisterncy
that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets.

2. The assets are part of a group of hinancial assets, financial ltabilities or both, which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management of investment strategy.

3. The asset contains one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modify the cash flows
that would othenwise have becn required under the eomract.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss is recorded in the Statement of Financial
Position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Other Income’ in the Statement of Profit or
Loss. Intercst earned is accrued under ‘Other Income’, using the effective interest rate method, and dividend
income is also recorded under "Other Income’ when the right to receive the payment has been established.

The SHPC has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition as designated at fair value through
profit or loss.

5.6.3. b Held to Maturity Financial Assets

Held to Maturity Financial Assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or delerminable payments
and Nixed maturities which the SHPC has the intention and ability to hold to matunity. After the initial
measurement, held 10 maturity financial investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate, less impairment. The amortization is included in *Other Income® in the Statement of
Profit or Loss. The losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognized in the Statement of
Profit or Loss.

The term deposits having maturity of one year maximum have been classified as held to Maturily Financiaf
Assels. These investments have been shown under heading "Envestments in Term Deposits™ in Schedule
4.13 of Statement-of Financial Position. The inlerest rate varies from bank 1o bank depending on the market
rales an_d’i}\:ci&ﬁ"é'{;gif_the deposits. The rates implicit on these deposils approximate the effective interest
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rates and the same rates are used to calculate the interest (finance) income and for the purpose of calculating
the amortized costs of these assets. The carrving value of these assels represents the amortized costs.

The details are as follows:

Amount in NPR

) Parliculars FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
1.  Laxmi Sunrise Bank Limited 324,000,000 223,000,000
2. Siddhartha Bank Limited 70,100.000 84,800,000
3. Sanima Bank Limited 44,500,000 44,500,000
4.  Kumari Bank Limited 31,190,000 -
Total 469,790,000 352,300,000

5.6.3. c Financial Assets Available for Sale

Available for sale financial assets inciude equity and debt securities. Equity [nvesonents classified as
*Available for Sale’ are those which are neither classified as ‘Held for Trading’ nor ‘Designated a1 fair value
through profit or losses. Debt securities in this category arc intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, available for sale financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value.
Unrealized gains and losses are recognized directly in equity through ‘Other comprehensive income /
expense’ in the ‘Available for sale reserve’. When the investment is disposed of the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in equity is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Other operating
tncome’. Where SHPC holds more than one investment in the same security, they are deemed to be disposed
of on a first-in-first-out basis. Interest earned whilst holding *Available for sale financial investments' is
reported as *Other income’ using the effective interest rate. Dividend earned whilst holding ‘Available for
sale financial investments' are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss as "Other Income' when the
right to receive the payment has been established. The losses arising from impairment of such investments
arc recognized in the Statement of Profit ar Loss under “‘Other operating and administrative expenses® and
removed from the ‘Available for sale-reserve’.

The company has invested in equity instruments of various companies with the intention of holding onto
such investments for both collecting contractual cashflows and selling the instruments for capital gain. These
investments have been presented as Other [nvestments in the Statement of Financial Position.

The investments have been recognized as per NFRS 9 at cost in initial recognition and subsequently
measured at fair value through Other comprehensive income at the year end. The listed investments have
been presented at the market rate as at year end and the Fair Value gain is recognized in Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income. In case of unlisted investments, the cost price has been used as the best estimate of
Fair Value and thus have been presented at cost price itself. The invesiments have been shown in detail in
Schedule 4.11. The details are as follows:

Name of Investce Company % Holiting No. OF Fair Total Amount

Shares Value (NPR)
1. Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd.* 16.00% 5,332,000 285 1.519,620,000
2. Sanima Jum Hydropower Lid. (At Cost) 9.40% 334475 100 33,447,500
3. Bavari Construction Pvt. Ltd. (At Cost) 8.00% 200,000 100 20,000,000

* The shares held of Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Limited are pledged in the favour of Consoriium banks of the
concerned company (o finance Middle Tamor Hydropower projecl. Since the shares of Sanima Middlé Tamor
Hydropower Limited are in lock in period, the shares have been valued at Level 2 of Fair Value Measurement
considering the market value of similar shares being traded at active market. The freely trudeable shares of the
company itself have been considered for the purpose.

5.7 Investment in Associates

For the purpgse of group financials, NAS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures has been
considpred and-hi¢. asgociates have been accounted for using the equity method. Associates are entities in
whict j?ﬁdompany ’as\slgmfcant influence, but not control, over the operating and financial pOlICIcs Thc

R ET g

Tl YT GTERT YU 306Q/0T0 mmmmmm—

- \'.
.l‘.



N
m Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited

investment in companies with holding more than 20% but less han 50% is normally treated as invesiment
in associates subject to Significant influence exercised over such companies. The investments in associates
are recognized at cost in separate financial statements while in group financial statements cost is increased
(or decreased) each year by the company's share of the post-acquisition profit/ (loss) using equity method.
The gain/(loss) on dilution of interest in associates has also been recognized in the year of such dilution in
Statement of Profiv(Loss).

The company ceases to recognize s share of the losses of equity accounted associates when its share of the
net assels and amounts due from the entity have been written off in full, unless it has a contractual or
constructive obligation to make good its share of the losses.

The tnvestment in Associates has been presented under Schedule 4.10. The details are as follows:

Name of Investce Company % Holding
1. Swet Ganga Hydropower & Construction Ltd.* 28.25%
2. Mathilto Mailun Khola Jafavidhyut Ltd.** 39.58%

* the shares held of Swet Ganga Hydropower & Construction Limited have been pledged in the favour of Consortium
banks of the concerned company to finance Tallo Likhu Jalavidyut Aayojana (28.1 MW).

** The shares held of Muthillo Mailun Khalo Jalavidhyut Ltd. have been pledged in the favour of Consortium banks of
the concerned company fo finance Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalavidyut Aayojana (14.3 MW).

5.8 Financtal Liabilities

The group initially recognizes loans and receivables on the date when they are originated. All other financial
liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date when the entity becomes a party 10 the contractual
provisions of the instrument. A financial liability is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is
classified as held-for-trading or is designated as such on initial recognition. Directly attributable transaction
costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as incurred. Financial liabilities ar fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value and changes therein, including any interest expense, are recognized
in the statement of profit or loss. Other non-derivative financial liabilittes are initially measured at fair value
less any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measared
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Other financial habilities include amount payable to
staff, other creditors including accruals, royalty amount payable and lease liabilities as per NFRS 16.

De-recogrition of other financial liabilities

A hnancial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged. cancelled. or
expires. When an existing financial liability ts replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original }iability and the recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

5.9 Financial Risk Management Objectives

The operations expose the Company to various risks. These risks include market sisk (including currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risks). credit and liquidity risk.

a) Risk management framework

The board of directors has overall respontsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s
risk management framework. The risk management framework is tnfended to ensure that risks are taken
care of with due diligence and care.

The risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the company, 10
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to menitor risks and adherence 1o limits. Risk managermem
policies and—sy ms are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the company’s
acnvm’qﬁ _"Co any, through its training and management standards and procedures, aimc to
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develop adisciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles
and obligations.

b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as forcign exchange rates. interest rates and
equiry prices that will affect the company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.
The objective of market risk management js to manage and control market risk exposusres within
acceptable parameters while oplimizing the retum. The Company currently has no transactions which
expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates, equity prices, etc.

c¢) Foreign currency risk

The Company’s functional currency is NPR and has cerntain transactions denominated in forejgn
currencies. As of the reporting date, management has analyzed the impact of the exposure to foreign
currency balances and the impact is not expected to be material.

d) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk thal the counterparty will default on its contractual obligation resulting in
financial loss to the company. The carrying amounts of financial assets and contract assels represent the
masximum credit exposure. The Company is not exposed to significant credit risk as the counterpany
involved is Nepal Electricity Authority.

e) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated
with its financial liabilities that are sefiled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s
approach to managing liquidity 15 10 ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufTicient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceplable losses or risking damage to the company’s reputation. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity
risk management rests with the Board of Directors, who have provided to the management, credit limit
for approved financial institutions to minimize the liquidity risk exposure.

S.10  Depreciation and Amortization

!. Depreciation s recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold Jand and
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the written
down method.

2. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, The estimated
useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

3. Depreciation is provided on the written down method based on the estimaicd useful lives of the
assets determined by the management. Depreciation on additions 1o fixed assets is charged on pro-
rata basis in the year of purchase. The useful life of the assets and the corresponding rates at which
the assets are depreciated are as follows:

Catepory of assets Estimated nseful life Depreciation Rate
Building A _ 58-39 years 3%
Plant and Equipment 18-19 years 15%
‘Office Equipment 10-11 years 25%
Furniture and fixtures 10-11 years 25%
Computers and accessories 10-11 years 25%
Vehicles 13-14 years 20%

Computer software is amortized over an estimated useful Jife of 5 years on straight line basis.
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4. Uscful life is either the period of time which the assets is expected to be used or the number of production
or similar units expected to be obtained from the use of asset.

The estimated useful life, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

5. Office fumniture, equipment, vehicles & plant equipment costing less than NPR 5,000 per unit is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the year of purchase.

5.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets subject to impairment testing include intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment. Impairment of material intangible assets under construction is tested at least once a year. Assets
subject to depreciation and amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment lest is performed by comparing the carrying amount of the asset or cash generating unit
(CGU) to its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the fair value less
cos1s to sell and value in use which is the present value of the future cash flows from an asset or CGU.

5.12 Retirement Benefits Obligations

5.12.1 Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which SHPC pays a fixed contribution
into a separate Institution (or own fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating 10 employee
services in the current and prior periods, as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 9 (Employee
Benefits).

The contribution payable by the employer to a defined contribution plan in proporiion to the services
rendered 1o SHPC by the employees and is recorded as an expense under ‘Personnel expenses’ as and when
they become due. Unpaid contributions, if any, are recorded as a liability under ‘Other liabilities'.

The company has been registered with Social Security Fund as required by the Social Security Act. 2074
and has been depositing 31% of the basic salary of its employees into the Social Security Fund established
as per the Act since Baisakh, 2078.

5.12.2 Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Accordingly.
leave encashment has been considered as defined benefit plans as per Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS
19 (Employee Benefits).

5.12.3 Unutilized Accumulated Leave

SHPC's liability towards the accumulated leave which is expected to be utilized beyond one year from the
end of the reporting period is treated as other long term employee benefits. SHPC’s net obligation towards
vnutilized accumulated Jeave is calculated by discounting the amount of future benefit that employees have
camned in return for their service in the current and prior periods to determine the present value of such
benefits. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on government bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of SHPC’s obligation. The catculation is performed using the Projected Unit Credit
method. Net change in liability for unutilized accumulated leave including any actuarial gain and loss are
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under *Personne! Expenses’ and the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise.

NAS 19 requires actuarial valuations for Leave encashment in order to determine the liability or asset that
the coa;ngfany has}t the year end. Actuarial valuations have been carried out to determine the same.
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Leave encashment has been subject to actuarial valuations as per the provisions of NAS 19. The details of
valuation and basis of valuation are presented in Notes to Financial Statements 4.26. The actuarial valuation
of leave provision is done by G.N. Agarwal, Consulting Actuary, Mumbai, India.

5.13  Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term
cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay Lhis
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

5.14 Provisions and Cantingencies

In accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards (NAS) 37- Provisions. Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, a provision is required to be recognized where there is a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event that can be estimated reliably, and it is probahlc that an owflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the timing or amoant of which are uncenain.

The company has made provisions for all those obligations meeting the definition of NAS 37.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Com pany or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable thar an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there
is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Companry does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the entity.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting periad.
5.15 Gavernment grants

Government grants are assistance by the government in the form of transfers of resources to an entity in
return for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating activities of the entity.

Gaovernment grants can be Grants related 1o assets or Grants related to income. Under Grants related to assets.
there is a condition that the entity shall purchase, construct or othenwise acquire long-term asseis. Grants
related to income are grants other than grants related to assets.

Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance they will be received and the company
will comply with the conditions associated with the grant. Government grants that compensaté the company
for expenses incurmed are recognized in profit or loss in the same period in which the expenses are
recognized. Grants that compensate the company for 1he cost of an asset are recorded as deferred revenue
and recognized in other revenue over the service life of the related asse!.

Govermnment grants shall be recognized as income over the periods necessary to match them with the retated
costs which they are intended to compensate. on a systematic basis.

Once a government grant is recognized. any related contingent liabtlity or contingent asset is treated in
accordance with NAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

As per topic “Urja Ujyalo Nepal Sambhriddha Nepal™ point — 61 of Annual Budget for F/Y 2071-72, “For
projects completed by 2079-80 and connected to National Grid, a lump sum amount of NPR 50 lakhs/MW
10 be provided as Government Grant. An additional 10% will be provided to those projects which will be
comple(ed and\fconnec\ed to the National grid by 2074-75."
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Mai Hydropawer Plant (22MW) and Mai Cascade Hydropower Plant (7MW) have been completed and
connected to Nationak Grid on 2071-11-14 and on 2072-10-29, respectively and are eligible for the grant
mentioned above of NPR 15.95 crores. However, the income has not been recognized yet as the realization
is not yet confirmed. Upon receipt of the grant amount. it will be accounted for as per the policy.

Management through individual capacity and through IPPAN is on continuous follow-up.
5.16  Borrowing cost

As per NAS 23, Borrowing costs are the costs incurred by the company in bormowing loans for the
construction of assets or any capital goods. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. Borrowings can be general or specific. Borrowing costs
are capitalized till the construction of the asset is complete and is ready for use.

The costs have been charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss since the asset has already come into
operation.

5.17 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right 1o use
the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an armangement.

Company as a Lessee

At the commencement date, the Company shall recognize a right of use asset at cost and a lease hability at
the preseni values of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payment shall be discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. 1f that rate cannot be readily
determined, the company shall use its incremental borrowing rate.

The Group depreciates {he right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Group also
assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

After the commencement date, the company shall measure the lease liability by

a. [Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability:

b. Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made: and

c. Re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications to reflect revised
in substance fixed lease payments

The Right of use assets and lease Liabilities along with depreciation and interest expenses has been shown in
more illustrative way in Schedule 4.9.

Company as a Lessor

For an operating lease, the company reports the leased assets at amortized cost as an asset under the property,
plant & equipment where it is the lessor. The lease payment received in the period is shown under other
operating income on straight line basis. Where the company is the lessor in finance lease. the assets are
recognized as lease receivables in the amount of the net investment in the statement of financial -position.
During the reporting period, the company has not leased out any of its assets.

5.18 Receivables and Payables

Receivables and payables are accounted for on accrual basis. Balance amounts on year-end are shown in the
Statement of Financial Position under ‘Other Financial Assets’ and ‘Other Financial Liabilities® heading.
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As per Nepal Accounting Standards- NAS 12 (Income Taxes) tax expense is the aggregate amount included
in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and deferred taxation. Income Tax
expense is recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss. except to the extent it relates to items recognized
directly in equity or other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

519 Income Tax

Income Tax Act 2058 has specified a tax rate of 25% flat for hydropower companies.

As per Section 11 (3 Gha) of Income Tax Act 2058, hydropower companies are exempted from tax for the
first 10 years of its operation and 50% concession on tax is provided for the next 5 years thereon.

Mai Hydropower Plant {22M W) started its commercial operation on 14 Falgun 2071 and Mai Cascade
Hydropower Piant (7MW) started its commercial operation on 29 Magh 2072. Thus, the company is in a tax
holiday period.

5.19.1 Curreut Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid 1o the Inland
Revenue Depaniment in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.

According to Section | 1(3 Gha) of the Income Tax Act, 2058 corporate tax is 100% exempt for |10 years and
50% exempt for further § years as eligible under the cusrent hydropower policy of the Government.
Therefore, provision for corporate tax has not been made with respect to operational revenue from the
project.

However, the required provision has been made in respect of interest income earned on term deposits.

An advance ruling was obtained from IRD by SHPC which states that, interest eamed from the bank balance
maintained in banks and financial institutions through revenue from sale of electricity and amount collected
through issuance of right shares shall be considered as income from business as per Sec 7 (2) of Income Tax
Act, 2058 and hence shall be exempt from tax as per Scc |1 (3 Gha) of the Act. However, interest earned
from deposits in banks maintained for per-determined term and pre-determined interest with the objective to
earn profit or gain shall be considered as income from investment as per Sec 9 (2 ka) of the Act and shall
not be exempt from tax as per Sec |} (3 Gha) of the Act.

On the basis of the above advance ruling, the amount deducted as TDS on interest on call deposits by banks
was claimed as an advance tax against the tax payable on interest on term deposits. Subsequently, due to
unclarity from tax authorities regarding the claim of such advance tax, SHPC has deposited and recognized
NPR 2,265,813 in current tax assets and NPR 589,988 as finc expenses related to interest charged in the
financial statements of FY 2078-79 against TDS deducted by banks on interest income from call deposits
relating to FY 2075/76 and FY 2076/77. The details are shown below:

Amount NPR
Advance Tax deposited Interest deposited
2075/76 1,126,288 422,580 1,548,868
2076/77 1,139,525 167,408 1,306,933
Total 2,265,813 589,988 2,855,801

The tax authority has instructed through letter dated 2080/03/03 to set off the advance tax deposited and
interest deposited in respect of FY 2075/76 of NPR 1.534.018 afler setting off NPR 15.000 as fine assessed
by Inland Revenue Department.
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5.19.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
and the amounts used for taxation purposes (1ax base), at the tax rates and tax laws enacted or subslantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the future tax consequences to the extent it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Income tax. in so far as it relales to items disclosed under other comprehensive income or equity, are
disclosed separately under other comprehensive income or equity, as applicable.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsel when there is legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances related to the same taxation authority., Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on net basis. or 1o realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The company is in tax holiday period due 10 which no temporary differences arise on carrying amount and
tax base and hence no deferred tax assets/liabilities have been recognized in profit and loss statement.

However, the tax is applicable in investment income of the company and thus deferred tax liabilities of
NPR 246.605,000 has been recognized in respect of difference in carrying value and tax base of investments.

5.20 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash in hand, cash at bank and
short-term deposits with a maturty of three months or less.

Further, cash amounting 1o NPR 51,092,058 and NPR 20,436,826 is restricted for general use as the amount
is held in accordance with the agreement signed with Consortium Bank for financing Mai Hydropower Plant
(22MW) and Mai Cascade Hydropower Plant (7MW), respectively, for capital expenditure and cash
amounting NPR 8,662,000 and NPR 6,724,648 is restricted for general use as the amount is held in
accordance with agreement, signed with Consortium Bank for financing Mai Hydropower Plant (22M W)
and Mai Cascade Hydropower Plant (7MW), for reserve of monthly budget of consecutive two months.
These have been described in detail in the following paragraphs. These amounts have been shown under
current other financial assets in the financial statements of FY 2079/80.

5.20.1 Capex Reserve held amount

As per the requirement of the facility agreement with the consortium Banks for financing. Mai Hydropower
Plant (22MW) and Mai Cascade Hydropower Plant (7MW), the Company has to maintain the specifc
purpose reserve out of debt payment account till the time the credit balance in the same reserve reaches
NPR 50,000,000 and NPR 20,000,000, respectively. For this purpose. the lead bank “"Laxmi Sunrise Bank
Limited" is holding certain amount from monthly revenue as per the facility agreement under section 1:
General, sub section VII: Undertakings (H) (1V). Currently, the balance in the Capex account maintained in
Laxmi Sunrise Bank Ltd. is NPR 51,092,058 for Mai Hydropower Plant (22MW) and NPR 20,436,826 for
Mai Cascade Hydropower Plant (7MW).

5.20.2 O&M Reserve held amount

As per the requirement of the facility agreement wath the consortium banks for financing, Mai Hydropower
Plant (22MW) and Mai Cascade Hydropower Plant (7MW), the Company has 1o maintain the O & M reserve
in revenue account for the next two-month O & M budget. For this purpose, the lead bank "l.axmi Sunrise
Bank Limited" has held NPR 8.662,000 and NPR 6,724,648, respectively for FY 2079-80 as per facility
on VII: Undentakings (H) (II).
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Inventory includes Bearing/Transformer oil, Spare parts of Electromechanical equipment, Hydromechanical
stock, Gabion box stock and other materials expected 1o be used in the normal course. Cost of inventories
comprises of cost of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs in bringing the asset to the tocation and
condition intended to be used by management. Inventories are stated at lower of cost or Net realizable value.
Net Realizable value represents the estimated selling price of the inventory less any estimated costs to sell.
Inventory is maintained in First in Fiest out (FIFO) Basis.

5.21 Inventory

522 Other Reserves

The other reserves include followings:

2. Actuarial Reserve: The actuarial reserve comprises of the effect of actuarial gain/(loss) in respect
of actuarial valuation of Accumulated Leave.

b. Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve: Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve is created by
setting aside one percent of net profits as per the provision of the Industrial Enterprises Act.

¢. Fair Value Reserve: Fair Value Reserve comprises of the effect of fair value recognition in respect
of investment securities.

d. Reserve for Adjustment due to Associates: The adjustments made by the associale companies in
other reserves of the respective associate companies have been adjusted in the group's other reserves
which have been presented as Adjusiment due 1o Associates under Other reserves head.

523  Revenue Recognition

5.23.1 Sale of Electricity

Revesnue is recognized to the extent that the economic benefits associated with a transaction will Qow to the
company and the revenue can be reliably measured in line with NFRS -15 Revenue.

The sale of electricity is the regular course of business of SHPC; therefore, revenue is recognized at the rate/s
given in the Power Purchase Agreement based on the approved meter reading from Godak sub-station of
Nepal Electricity Authority. Revenue is recognized afier netting off any deduction made by Nepal Electricity
Authority,

5.23.2 Dividend and Interest Income

Dividend income from investment in shares (s recognized when the right to receive the payment has been
established.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits wil) flow
to the entity and the amount can be measured reliably.

All other incomes are recognized on accrual basis,

524 Government Fee (Payment for Environment Scrvices-PES)

The Company had entered into an agreement with the Forest Department in 2069 B.S. related to Land Lease

of Forest Areas and removal of Trees. Clause 8 of this contract requires the company 1o pay “Payment for

Environment Services (PES)" from the 6" year of operation as per the below table. Thus, such PES has been

booked as Government Fee and the financial liability of such amount (0.01% of net profit) has been shown

under currep o;hgf\ﬁnancial tiabilities (Payable ta Other).
; WCft,

)
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S Project Operation Periad % of Net profit to be paid as PES
1 From 0-5" Year of Operation 0%

2 From 6™ -10" Year of Operation 0.01%

3 From 11% -15® Year of Operation 0.05%

4 From 6" -20™ Year of Operation 0.10%

5 From 21% -25" Year of Operation 1%

5.25 Disposal of Fixed Assets

The company has disposed of fixed assels which were damaged beyond repair during the year. The net value
of disposed assets was NPR 92,661 which has been shown under Schedule 4.3.

5.26  Foreign currency translation

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is determined on the basis of the primary
economic environment in which it operates. The functional currency of the Company is Nepalese Rupee.
Revenues and expenses resulting from transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Nepalese Rupee
equivalents at exchange rates approximating those in effect at the transaction date.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Nepalese rupee at the
exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Translation gains and losses are credited or charged to Profit
or loss in the current period.

Exchange differences arising in the setlement of monetary items or on translating monetary itenis at rates
different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or n previous
financial statements have been recognized (using the closing rate of reporting date) as foreign exchange gain
or loss and adjusted with Statement of Profit or Loss as per NAS 21.

5.27 Proposed Dividend

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from cquity when they arc approved
by the Company's shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted {rom equity when they are paid.

A dividend proposed by the Board of Directors after the reporting date is not rccognized as a liability and is
only disclosed as a note to the financial statements.

Company’s board meeting dated 2080/06/15 has proposed a 10.5263% bonus dividend out of total reserve
till FY 2079-80.

Said proposed dividend has not been adjusted in the financial statements as this is a non-adjusting event as
per NAS 10.

5.28 Withholding tax on dividends

Withholding tax that arises from the distribution of dividends by the Company is recognized at the same
time as the liability to pay the related dividend is recognized.

S5.29 Trade Debtors

Trade debtors include receivables of revenue for the month of Jestha 2080, Ashad 2080 and the amouat in
rclation 10 20% additional claim as per “Posted Rate” of facility agreement 2071 with Nepal Electricity
Aulhonty (N"Eﬂ; for Mai Hydropower Project (15.6MW).

Q/@%ﬂ
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The facility has been provided for projects completed and commercially operated by Chaitra 207). Since
Mai hydropower project was commercially operated on 2071/11/14 it is eligible for the posted rate for 7
years from Baisakh, 2072 to Chattra 2078, The following claims have been made with the Nepal Electricity
Authority via commercial invoice till Chaitra 2078.

Fiscal Year Amoon(
2071-72 7,940,784
2072-73 49,722,636
2073-74 74,943,265
2074-75 78.852,815
2075-76 71,377,441
2076-77 83,302,286
2077-78 £ 78,545,350

Shrawan to Chaitra 2078 58,135,907
Total 502,820,484

Received 216,809,470

Net Receivables 286,011,014

NEA has forwarded the claim to the Ministry of Energy.

The Company has received NPR 216,809,470 tilt FY 2076-77 for due posted rate from Nepal Electricity
Authority on different dates. For the pending receivable, continuous follow up has been made by the
management to Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) and Ministry of Energy, Water Resources & rrigation
(MoEN) & Ministry of Finance (MOF) for the receipt of the claim. At the reporting date, the posted rate
claim due is NPR 286,011,014,

5.30 Advance to others (impairment of receivables)

The advance provided to Radio Fikkal amounting to NPR 1,000.000 has been impaired during this FY. The
amount was provided to Radio Fikkal as financial assistance for the development of information and
communication systems in the project area as per their request. However, the amount was provided as
advance bul has not been settled to date. Considering its nature, the amount s not recoverable from the party.
So. the BOD Meeting dated 28" Ashadh, 2080 has decided to write off such advance.

5.31 Other Income

Other income includes insurance claims received against the loss caused by the flood during FY 2078-79
and vebicle accident during FY 2079-80.

5.32 Addition of Asscts/Increase in Cost of Intangibles

The company has constructed a kitchen building at Mai Cascade staff quarter amounting to NPR 462,195
and has purchased required batteries for Mai Cascade amounting 1o NPR 563.418.

533 Royalty

Capacity royalty at NPR 100 Per Kilo Watt amounting to a total of NPR 2,900,000 (NPR 2,200,000 — Mai
Hydro and NPR 700,000 — Maj Cascade Hydro) has been accounted for as Other Operating and
administrative expenses, whereas generation royalty (@ 2% of revenue receipt, amounting to NPR
15,270,835 has been accounted for as plant operating expenses.

The capacity royalty is payable in the month of Chaitra and the generation royalty is payable on a monthly
basis. NEAJ&@,’{{: cled the generalion royalty during the payment of revenue.
Lsausyy
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The generation royalty is deducted at the rate of 2% of revenue from the sale of electricity at the source i.e.,
by Nepa! Electricity Authority on a monthly basis.

534  Prior Period Adjustment

During this FY 2079-80. an error was found while calculating the amortization of Sanima Mai Cascade
Hydropower Project. The error has been adjusted by increasing opening retained earnings of FY 2078-79 by
NPR 9.718,637 and the amontization for the year 2078-79 has been resrated from NPR 130,773,976 to
NPR 151,169,363.

5.35 Provision for Staff Bonus

The company has separated 2% of its Net profit before tax and bonus as Provision for Staff Bonus for the
year ending 31* Ashad 2080 complying with Sectian 15 of Electricity Act 2049 and Rule no. 86 of Elcctriciry
Regulations 2050.

536  Corporate Sacial Responsibility Expenses as per Industrial Enterprises Act, 2019 (2076 B.S)

New [ndustrial Enterprises Act 2019 (2076 BS) (the *“Act”) has come into effect from 28" Magh, 2076.
Section 54 of the Industrial Enterprises Act 2019 (2076 BS) makes it mandatory to allocate 1% of the annual
profit to be utilized towards corporate social responsibility (the “CSR Requirement’”). The fund created for
CSR is to be utilized on the basis of annual plans and programs but in the scctors. that are prescribed under
the Act. In the corrent year, the Company has incurred NPR 6.655,15( on Corporate Soctal Responsibility.
Further, 1% of net profit from current year 2079-80 amounting to NPR 4.068.374 has been set aside for CSR
expeqses to be made in the next Fiscal Year.

During the year, the board of the company vide its meeting dated 28" Jestha 2080 has decided 1o hand over
the buifding constructed and used by the company during the construction phase for storage and management
of explosives located at Gunmune Bagar, Mai Municipality ward no. 9. The condition of generation license
requires the handover of project assets in workable condition. The building handed over is not an inevitable
part of project and has remained unused since operation. The building as such js not required 10 be handed
over 1o the government.

A local community forest user group “Shree Gunmune Ghaletar Samudayik Ban Upabhokta Samuha" made
a request to use such building for their official vse. The building was handed over through discussion with
local government and as per the recommendation of such authority for the use as community building by the
cammunity forest user group. Afier considesing the recommendation from the ward office of Ward no. 9.
Mai Municipality and the valuation provided by the Municipality itself, the company has handed over such
building 10 the user group in good faith for the community support and has taken the written down value of
the intangible asset as an expense under corporate social responsibility.

537  Operating segments (NFRS 8)

Operating segment is a component of an entity:

a. That engages in business activities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses
(including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same
entiry).

b. Whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chicf operating decision maker 10
make decisions about resources ta be allocated to the segmenl and assess its performance: and

c. For which discrete financial information is available.

SHPC has been involved in the production and sale of electricity. SHPC has two reportable segments. namely
Mai Hydropower Plant (22MW) and Mai Cascade Hydropower Plant (7TMW). Therefore, the company has
two reponqblg‘segmcnls in accordance with NFRS § ‘Operating Segments’. The other administrative cost
income has been breakdown in the ratio of the capacity of the project.
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538  Earnings per share

Earnings per share s the portion of group's/company’s profit allocated to each outstanding share of common
stock. Basic carnings per sharc is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) for the year by the weighted
average number of equities shares outstanding during the year.

Basic carnings per shave is calculated by dividing 1he net profit for the year atrributable to equity holders of
the parent by (he weighted average nnmber of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. as per the NAS
33 - Earnings per Share.

Particulars ' Group Company
FY 2079-80  FY2078-79  FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79
(Restated) (Restated)

Amount used as a Numerator

Profit Attributable 1o ordinary
Shareholders (NPR)

Amount used as the Denominator

Weighted average number of Ordinary
Shares

Basic Earnings per Ordinary Share (NPR) 11.72 17.86 13.17 17.67

362,175,610 551,690,387 406,837,417 545,774,922

30,892,510 30,892,510 30,892,510 30,892,510

539  Pending Cash Dividend

The company has been disiributing the Dividend since FY 2074-75 till date. Sannna Capital Limited has
been working as the Share Registrar of the company. As per the information provided by the share registrar.
there is a pending Cash Dividend of NPR 21,126.578 of 35,192 Shareholders as on Ashwin 12th. 2080. The

derails  regarding  (he unclaimed  dividend have been published in website of the company
httpsz/‘maihydro.conymain’ipo’ .

lend Disteihuted Year No. of Sharehelders Undistributed Dividend (NPR)

L. ’0?4! 75 8,300 3,841,745

2. 2076/77 10,270 6.773,805

3. 2078/79 16,622 10,511,028
Total 35,192 21,126,578

vy &
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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200 - 3.50
178 162.28 3.00
150 -
2.50
130.15
e | 12207 12561 19417 |
2.00
100
1.50
75 1.06
1.00 088 444
50 0.55
v 25 0.50 0.44
2 |
=
FY 207817 & HITE0TT HITT07E HITESOTS TS/ 080 FY 2O7R/0TE  ZOVRSOVT  200VS07E 207R/DTO  ZOTS/0B0
Return on Capital Employed Return on Equity
11.44%
12 30
10.5
9 8.55% llin =
7.65% ' -
7.5 17.68%
14.58%
6 - 15 14.36% R
4.83% 13.17%
§ 45 -
@ e 9
o Tua @
s o
o it
o )
FY 2075076 207G/OTF 207V 078 2078070 2070080 FY 2075076 T ROTT TI0TE 0TEMNTI 2079/ 080
Investment Dividend Distribution
. Investment . Advance foreg
. Bonus % . Cash Dividend %
1,200 18
1,000 15
800 12 0.53%
600 9
3
£ 400 v 6
@ o
5 200 g 4
= o
)5
FY 207R/076 2076077 2077 /078 2HTESO07D 2075020 FY 20VR{ 076 207R/077 20T 078 2078/079 207 9080

EE— WWWW QOUQ/OCO e




sl Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited ‘@

(@) Stetfdzld RIGToN:

o

qATTHT STAqId  [TFHaHl AT S9TE]

FifdeE Far FETeE faEEH 9O g "
JEeTHT I GOTHT FESIUET [, H AT
T7ET Y T8 AMME q& WF ITH AT
FH ATFAT AT q@res 9IaT  8TEgl

THEHT TYHT TSR T TTRITHAT ATTFE G |
YRIRTE SOTHTAT T {qIaR] STTRTAT Bivgd

RH AT GHE SATHRAT AT fafaefrreo w3

faere, AT, Ts9meT T ATRAT SFa9TgE
STHATATE hi® &I halas AUE G |

SATGT  ATAAAEER] (AT T G
AThd  AUTEH]  TeAqad  IAETR &
AT QTS Ie¥AFT A1 f4.8 04 Y qrerHT
79 GHED! UiEAl SAiqgd FEAT A
ETZSMTET 1. fel. T TITIAT TN AWTHAT Y=9T,
fqmares fSeett ferd & AAT &Hars
TeefT IET STefawd AR A qur

dfrs, fa<irr g, Srr weT, e F)
&3 eferaafady sear fafv greenr fa@n
AP G |

TAIART  GHXA  AYAH] AAEAT T
AAEEEAT faadE el SErETH v
GAATEAT T@PT T TRl IATTHNT JIANET T
IATfF T ATHTN [aaTaeT AT qafe ™ /e
fqed ITAEAH] e Aqedl Ty AT
3ig ¥ AR ST TEANT =TS A1 AR
Sfod gfawer ITd T did qaTeTs AT
ey WIET BTl UHEe favd derd 39TE
RY A% weaT qE gHASRE fafw=T et

TSAEEE a9 AAAT e g8 ATUE g |
AT BT FHESA RIAEFH SATTYET JqTe el
fata=T T a1 T faq =T sTHATHT STefaed
ATATSTATRED] AT HA THITH FTHT I
T AT fqFEFE FREE WREFR G |
TaiEd ATSHEE Ted FHA9d TRAATIEE

et g~ T FSEEEaET @ FaaiaE
ST T VRN G, I HiaqT ifeqas Fraforsr
F @ ET AfaH AR @A 9| FHaed
TATIAl AFAT T gAY fawasr RisT®
TIUET G| T9 GHEERT g1, fAfnia
T JALPIART hHHT Tedhl 6||4\|°1"||6(°4’1| HEEd

AATEIESH  GATEIAT (AT, AT ATEIATE (TR ATTHAT TT TR G

ED SATIE AT TSAATERT wifea

q. :rm?;mﬁr‘mww AT BB (P TR S

Q| Eepreft &AL, & WAT | AOTAT STESIUMER o | TaTar W@ adiiaed e WL Tedhl |
RERICEIC)

R |WE, e, wid A | ’% #war |wfaer wrE A=A AT T AT Icqre 7T @ |

gregirav fer

3 |WIE RS, g4, Wig | @ War | i Ay FEATATHT T AT ITaET T TEH |
.97 HECIRICEA N

¥ | HeT quR, @3 War |afrar fafeer quiw  |Frufonfaa (@ /3w e faior &0 9r9g=)
GISEN] HEEIRIEEAEE

Y |deet ferg, 6. |¥Ed AT IESMEY | S EIAAHT Wl SAd1ab SN W T |
HEEEVEITERLN war |y eadd o

el AYF TR GUT 06Q/0T 0 T



— Sel S GTERY FHT 30W6Q /00

asfa. 5:nima Mai Hydropower Limited
F. | Afaem yweaEw | St
| aw e | e | e e AW EEEIEET
v |mirsar fieg @i, ¥ 3 |wiaeedt dag @ar | Fraionfaa (ko 4% Frafr aef qee)
LGN war | Sfgd fa
G |S[H Wil qreEn fav | 45 HaAr || S e vifqd AEHEES  fAuvrer @t
A HESRICIETS AEYIG AR Gfaueedt fTwior qur
HATITIAH] FUTE W5 Wbl |
o |Wer ddg @i, T@ar (93 War | mfaeer dag @ler  |Ide erHe $rd w98 faad Soed
St o FAATTIT 91 |
R |mfedr #ag o, T ar |miret Ay "o |Fder aqerEEdr Frfes g wg faad
qdr sdfadd fe Jcdreg FTAqIAST I |
ST 333 HAL
T9  GHEIWT  Yaigd  IWIh  deigdgd el qar fadefl Safqgd s |
ATAATE® VT T YadF FH-AEedl AT Siide a1 FHT T qag® ik q0

ST ST FRIHT T SR Ee Hed a9
AT 912 BTz rTaY fafads uf U decaqul

FIEEATS TRATSHT GFte, LTI, ST,
fator Fuivaseie TsemaTarTE Aeaviey

AMIEAr & | T I9 FEAE 99
AT ETESUTAY UTS Friddd [ATHESHI %,
%Y 00,00 000 /- (F&EY FATfeTq FTS HA),
AT IS THIT BTESIUTER [ATHE ST STITHT
%, 43,3%,00,000/- (374T0dT &7 I~ FRIS
Ficqe oG AT ¥ AIfTeel Feqg @1 Steffaaq
fAfqd e STTAT & 33,0 00,000 /- (&Y
AT FUS Y& d1g HH) T AT H G
T AT A 2128 9Ta7 [Arae SgneT et
Y& H.AT. ETHATER] STHETAT STATaZd SATITSTATA]
AFAA & q,40,00,00000/- (F&FYl TF
g TAT FRIS {IA) AIMFT 5 (902 TTRTAT
TG &, 3,3%,¥9,000 /- (F&YT 1 #IS
TG A GeAe I g% A7) T 9
AT I FIH ATTDH G |

& urfdafam wrert aen sfeaterRy Jar:
yrtafas® geraef qar gharaiey 949t gee T

STATTAT SATATSTATEED! (AT FAT FSoATeATH
TEAN T e FAEaE IeedHE 9 I9
THEATe AT €2l U0 Ife1aiey 91, f.
.8 0% A qI@ R A R TI
ATHRAT GHE MABT FAAfa=d ATITSAT TF

TE] GEU Tafad qerHel qur Ity

AT Y& TVed! G |

AT BTZST THEH A9 I ATE T e
fafadegmT gatda AT ¥ AT FThe TAiawd
ATATSTATET AT ATTLTF YT GRrAef T
Ay a1 9Ee 9 qAT 9 S

Fwgepl HatHa quivasto, W T qoprias
AEAAF ATEgR qeHet far fwrart a9
FEAERE fGTUF g | dE gEel Uve
Theartrateg 1. fa. ISO 9001:2015 IUT&aR
THIYS YT T Seaeiieas sl qriaus
qTHet AT ZRAMINE FAT YEE T SR
®IH] WM IS F |

(an fafer 3= do, dlenm ooudd! va
oolellcbal el :

AT GHEET AT9g Alth qaT GRAEEEH
e AT ST ST W avHT qTorsg
JFF TAAT GAT SF  AHEE, faaE
AT =T qIEAT FMdee [ATASS, HAT
FUARE AT oI AEE
fafree v wnaar forarde g fafaes
U T Yag% FHAEE giaar 91, 9.




JHAT TEHE 1. [, T4aT @ Feureie
RH T

(ED) 3761 IaATRID 31 -

TIAT THE 978 T9aF ATch adl GeIeEale
THEHE FEAT (TTARUA, SFhIEFER 008

edwe {1, geer (rFm g for.), fmfor

i AT ATE ETESraTar {7, ® fey e AT
RTEaTfereRT ferd AT STerfasra SISt 9 /g
TS AT ATISATH [z, Faf qar
TS T U@ Ie9d Aied T %, J0%Y
AT AU OYER, FFIA] AALNERT BRI
FEAT ®OHA] WO9AT ACET a1 S
ATATSTAT &FT JATHT qAITRUES qHAATS
I FEAIH] TICHT AR TTE G&H
T FEede AT /T grzenraY . fo. &g
fafa 0% =% 3 @7 fafuaq =w=r gz

sl Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited ‘@

FEarefl FHAT (FET FegaT 9 fe),
e (et atfesr 91, {9, segae (Afeaan
Sere gleqee uve foasf i), g=um (@feaqe
fafgs dea=w . fo), 9 gfecgsr Frel
fer.) artfe fafaeT Fra e SF i 1 & 1T
AR FAANIF AT RH G |

ATHdSaTe UleeT®r fATHESAT FFIATHT T

o

AT | STITET AT (TSR T9=Td T

THEd qfed FHAIRT ®IA] WH G |
TG FFIHENT Yaiga I3 H.AT. Alead &

ATE FAfAZd ATASATATE FeAw 9%, 2049 @
7O AT Afed HAHATH HIE TS AAFId
AT HT 3%, R0 g =HFEifaE
IES qE T IJeled famd que faa
griraRerETs feshr T ATERET G |

el AYF TR GUT 06Q/0T 0 T



)

— Sel S GTERY FHT 30W6Q /00

m Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited

FAGAT TAT ATATSATRT ATUTINA AAHILIRE
q aifaur wrE erggraar fatnde

QAT fafa % e R0%Y

dfeie fafwegmr aftads 3 @7 Ro0%s
HIAI &dl T 9339/0%& /0%

W T 303049

JATSATR TH :

g STAfaaa ATATSTT (I3 T aT)

g S STAadd AT (O # T )

ATASTATEIS |G AALANABT, FATH

9Tl &b T~ dabd - SHPC

FATHR ST

& W 7 9T -¥, JIARTET, FEATSH

FIT T 09-¥3WRGR5, ¥3IY3030
TAHT © +]V8-09-¥OqL R

Uit ST A Q630

g8~ sanimamai@sanimahydro.com

a9dTse - www.maihydro.com.np
A3 Stotfdzid 3TRIGTelN - 22 Al

TUTA P TATH [STodATRT ATE TRTYTI T A~ qR]

Tz grigaTure Tfted g9 gune AT gaTE
TRUF G | WE AAAIT AT STifE
FE 0% /050 HT FURIT IR T AT
TR ATAHT (99T TaT8 Wl G | AT a9
0% /050 FI FET ATATAT 5,%%32 3%Y.16Q
fFetrare T T q@r I Q4359337 .39
{Feflaie @Y T SHT 90,40,3%,%30 .95
fFetare JATaY Tefqad IR Wl G |

T/ @Il AT RIEREIE

I 88 = fo.

sfeq erwar RR WAr

ST & ve) a7 fe

festra fezarst R3 3 "Afwey afq Adb-g
A g a9l I9Is | 40 R0 (0 adr 99 0
e - IFT T §ed

fraa e el Al

TdigT IHIY, & T 3

stya aififa It 95 30 fiRrEre 9fq wver
TR TG 3R & o1, favrer afae

FAGId IART &= | 09 RIS ¥
rafar

: & N Jcqred niau ROTY/0Y /93 |1 34 aY
3T 7. 3 T lj EEIEPI wq\wﬂw S
i%lj!{fr TETFSTA. deﬁﬂ;l*-LﬂHI ATATSATRI AT S E AAl | a9/3003 W
T & (Headworks) TATRTT & | AT ISTATH
T3 TARMS Slotided 3TRISTeN-b AT,

i & 020 fA. #THr 99 fA. S=TEH ="
ARd WTE @ETE SFaR 3.¢3 mHiFe
qiq 9FUS FEEdATs dW del YaegR HIRA
oy f. =T @ Y 7. =iteTE ¥ WX 9. SemEE
¥ FI TR AUST SATal TAS TR HT
qAEE | 91 grEdEe 0.0 fHidfAeY et
AT ATEAH! ATAATATS FATGS &7 AR ATS
GIETH I3TErg ¥ aeal Yed qHIeme 901 59
. & o= TR 39%5.%% W, A 9EF T
Rue 30 fH. =T UeeE Uy &3 fawd A
SEM TRUF AMaer AfdEd wamd auE
FIFaE TAMETH @E%=g | 79 HHA] I
afgFad R A A1 faEd IR A9

ATS STATaed [EF! MEFare MierusT a s
FA 3092 &% A, ATHI AT ¥ % ARCATRA
afqFday 33.¥0 THiHeT gfq g FETEAATE
033 7 FWE, qeo0v M. werE T v\
fa. SuE® wRATH AT S deEer
%% . Fo THEE WUFT dF q2T TALF
qrey WThRA faEd EAT SSM IRUH AW
2T RIS Uaad UHT Wlivad ZargHl
GAEUH T qAULHA SNEd IAETE ¥
frfa 33 3t 1 faga wemwr A ¥
fo 1.z A SAfaa qEEr e
T qATE HIE SEaEd T8 ¥ AR HTeS




SAFIT e IANEd GIh Iorars 99.4
fF M. amr fggwer 9iwesr 93 &A1 #
TR SATEH HIRd EH G s=Hl JaE
T FTEAT FNSR YT A2 HIRA LT
YT YU T GHIEd T0E! G |

Iq e avwr Fuf AEET 3,94, 35,998.05
fFeTare MY ¥ g@r ATHAT ¥\ 9%, R3¢ .90
fFeliare @y M STET 3,33,43,90%.95
fFerare Sfreay A IR HUH g |

T/ |t T RIEREIEIN

T 2T ¥R Y i

sifgd ervar @ ¥ ar

EEIPILE=E] o) aif e fir

festrgd Feerst %3 ¥3 AfTe 9fq dd-s
WeTd  9alY RCC Rectangular Canal
fqad Tz el qdel

ZargT gepre, e FI 3

Ityq arfife I 35 ¥3R Arrare afq ser
TR ATRA n &1, fare afee
TP IcqET & | 0 UIH Y

fufa

Jeqred sutau RO%R/09/ 9y & I a9
EERRCRICEL]

R =< fufa & & adf =t afeqr/ 053
afy

314, 20t/0T0 AT HCDI A TFAIRX el
WRDT DRIGE :

wTATeT T YR OTE T WO (9 @ivE {eshl
TRRIAT qata® Ay faade gt e
T fa=a arqid THET AN T9 FEAERT
Il AT ¥ WIE HTSRE Seiaed
ATATSATR] [a2d Fragwdl Ied Haengd
T AT gHa 9WE wrf frafeg waer €
ATTHT G | AT 7 06 /050 AT AT
FEREd] JCTGAATE (ATway FoaTe T Fofi
IarEd I fafws 7Hd W qor srEvad
TURF FEEE TRUF G | 9 Hed FEl
T FREE MHER Rdl S |

Im Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited ‘@

zméaaﬁimrﬁw

FSaF GYEAT A U eY W Ve
7.9, R, TEF AFAT T oA H e
afgTdr AHTET SN W ArEHE am
iy~ HiHFTgER] THEIT T 7HA
TRUHET G | A faiger qRET defes afem
¥ ESH FONCHT Oelve aRgA ¥ A
TS IAAE ¥ ATIedAe IeHT [ah=T
FIAFAREH QST YN T qHT qe0
%l%‘aﬁﬁ?rﬁm d®m Rl WA €
ATEMEHT FHEE ﬂﬁ@ g |

* I 1.9 A HIZ AAEGI FHRT aSAT
AT qwad U dede T, 9afds
Jiad ReATTg AT & A9 FH W IH
TaEwdl TRAH, 9 givadd 991 =ie

AHd TRIET FT1H TUH S, |

el AYF TR GUT 06Q/0T 0 T



asfa. 5:nima Mai Hydropower Limited

\\é- ‘ &
g TRk A%
PR\ ’la--.fn 2

o [TERAUFT HHAT ESaF vV d Il &g

* TE AU FvaH  TARITHBITEA
FEBTT el =S o+¥Y ¥ o+%¥§ A SUFEEH] FIAAAE F1IH T TG
SEURT FATF T TS +5°0, +299, ¥ FfFe 3 TalzT T W G gEied
R+0%0 W THZ ¥ F(He ATENES A SUFIUEES] HH TORINEH! FA TR
TUHl T (999 FAFA Glea® I=4 z
i FhRe fAFERE W@ T wEa \—1—
AT U] G | R | I-iA

T

., W \, 7 ,_ 3

A3 TRIRMS Slatfded B :

o UE FEUPE AAEHT Fvadl WIRAP
FYT WIEH] Weeay MR g 8T HRu
HUH! HTiaars ATegfTE giaid Polyurethane
Injection (PU) A UF AT ATHIET 91T

(FUIY W) TN AHA F TRCH G |

* AU SIS A & TAZAHT Main Inlet

Valve (MIV) &T& AU FEEE HI=0TH
AT fed qET ¥ desiMT TART T qHA
i g |

— Sel S GTERY FHT 30W6Q /00




ﬂ&% Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited ‘@

* AE FATAFSHI AT TCIAATHl Tq GIAT
qAqT HASAFRT AN ALGAT GiATHT qTaT
feperereT Tt e #rf AivuE g |

* U FEFS FTAMEAd Fad! UTLF
UTE9RT FEETO T SR 9TE9 ¥ SSe 9uie
faamr sfausl @A iy, foes
qﬁvﬂﬁnﬁ'crwn'a?m‘nfmﬁal

* TE TAEEd Fest@ WE WEES
SEIE G T-Le e o M L) B G e |
Tl FHE FE GATHT GHT HHA T
o afEuEer 9ET e T g9 "ier
FAFAH TIN W 7oA M0 G | fa7d
Feaepl ATE TEH MAST Gediw! qrat
SR ATV FHERT IRATE ATIYTE T
I RIME AT T Teeh] qGEahE T
ATAITF AHAHT FTAE® TNUFT G | * A WEFS TYEAY BSYH A acd

> 2T Main Inlet Valve (MIV) &TE STHT

qHT =R F=T0FT AT Main Inlet

Valve Service Seal Ii¥ade VU] g |

* [{E A AE FEFE FAAGId G
Iared fagam Ifers 93 &1 gam

AT IR A9 faRE g WEE
E-TLTAT TATS IMeT FLROT JOITe (|
qHIfed TRUHT @ | |ET G0 AT
qAT TTAVEEH] GREHR] AN TS B
THETS ¥ GO T2 (AT I TEEwh]
T Fa TVUH G |

el AYF TR GUT 06Q/0T 0 T



—-)

— STe! Y WTHURUT YT 308¢/0T0

‘,‘m‘.;‘g\ Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited

et o a5 IUR fdfdese faxaiRa ol

TG FEAM ATHIGA qreq W i g
TSATE IHT ATE (R HAT) TAT AIE FEES
(¢ H.AT) AT AASHAEE ATHITTT I
Ul fAfaer 3 Fvufg #FeF awisH s
FHT AXFATS EeqTea¥0 a1 qTaem el
AT, FEAA (G AR EeH] A IH] T
YiaRe®l Avvaedr ua Jfawaq fea®r «nT 99
FEAC AT FUAEH ATASTAEEHT T T+
AT [0 FT=T &« T I9 FFIE FIsA
FIESl 9HE Avadasl AW TS Yad®
FHAEED] ATH] AT TP G

o AT fAlee e grEgmmEy fdfads w
THY STAIId AT, 93 /AT

® 9T T ETZSIUMEAY UUS Frgad [A[HeS
(el fog STATTAT SATATSHT 5.9 H.47.)

o HITeeA Re(F QAT STA a2 (AT (ATTear
Herg GIeAT STetazd ATaT 9%.3 H.4T)

o AT SH ETEgMATaY . (S[H @ieT JTataza
ATATSAT, L& H.4T)

Sfeafad AT gads FrOEware g

gafd GfqaE® ATIRAT AATSTAEER] (AH

YA ¥ ETAH] STACATH AAT T [Eeh]

AFENIET AN G &qHT (HHEr 954

TNTH G -

feran fifSor ok arssiuR feifdes

(eq THR AATGLT ATFTSTAT, 93 HAT)

aey U FAfaad AT S e

AT AT Al TR ETZ S 1aTeR [ TAd S gRT A= ST7

fsreett ferg qHIR TE=RT =T8T AN & W
YA4T TN TEiAe TRAMAE g7 7. 8 T
90, BIhRTFAT TSUTAFT 72T 7. 9, T [HFT@Ie

MU FST 7. X AT H&F H& TUAAEe
VB 93 WAL, TS &THATH! HLF TN ST
ATIATHT 0T R fam =T 99T g |
TG e A SeEdEEE fAfE




ferearey fafaat frafor sraarft Fw Zhejiang
First Hydro Power Construction Group Co. Ltd.,
ETESI-HAFI e Trawell FAF a1 A=
Hed Urg BT o g, {7, TR mET I Ee
SUFIVEEET ATY(d, TSI FAT GICETI T AHT
FTAFT TN Chongging Water Turbine Works Co.
Ltd. ¥ arafaae & faafodr @17 Cosmic
Electrical Engineering Associates Pvt. Ltd. T
TUHET GRRIAT FHITTHFT FEAEE TZEH T |

TIpl AT quiR

g 28 SECALS

Sfeq euar 93§ Aar

SR & R00% R a1 f& fr
ESIFSAELEIE 93 99 yHfeR 9fq dg
Jierehl AT AT

i yy fr qurqoyu
LI I TIHSA S |ES G h
EEGIRIE EEET)

Zaigd 9T, A& R ¥

Aty anffes 3T ¥3% ¥ frrmare gfq ser
TR AT R0 % oft, Tae Afwe

ST gE T |nra 3 a4 33 FE
Fqia giawel (FIRR) | 19 ¥%

quferd gaatas R0G0 BT Y4

Idred g« fafq

S ICREERUIGRES R0YY /OR/RR HIE I, a9
qerel e Idi

TeFRT (s Meree = 99 S99
a1 fa=mg werery, fama fawe faam, fa=m
s s, qure fagd grigeer, a9 qur
ATATA Hearerd, favT, e M 9ediq,
HFa qar gAld qAT GRRIET AIdE
FaEE I fa9d ITMET FAG TA, Al
FEA UETHT f GRTE, I ggeawE ge,
faegra &fvs fasT guplar iy s=1 FrEe

Im Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited ‘

g T fafg 00y T 30 wafE @
ATATSAT (F7=a? =HT (A 3T g |

BT AT AASATD] o @, TgH 99,
FITH, qTAT AT Freddee ST HTF ST E T
a1 TAHET WP, BTEgI-HFTTFeTh! FIH
U T ¥ BTA9R I9 ATASTATER (R
FTF 23 gfqeTd, THHRT HFHFS 6% e ¥
RTES-UFIHe 53 WiaeTd, TR A3 o3
ofqeTd TFI 9% FA ATESHT FHR 23
gfqeTd F T TITAEF G | ATASHATETE
SATeEd fagde Satars #a & fF.H amr
o Al gad wive faa gomewr AmEA
ATRA A9Ter fa=rd g gearnad gadaiy
qI-LITAT TS Wed TR JUIe [
THTEd g |

TG ARSHIR FF ATHIT aWd & 93
qd 33 FIS WA G | ATASATR FqqNIF
IAEA fAfq 050 WM U T wHE G |
AT fAfrET S ST AT 'rEgraaT
. o yad® FEAF! ATAT ®. Y3 FUS N
A T AT W G |

el AYF TR GUT 06Q/0T 0 T



— STe! Y WTHURUT YT 308¢/0T0

-‘ M@= Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited

e QU STAaad ATASTAH dSaas a3

U U Sl Td ATATSTATH fer Id g

e

)

(Aol ferg ST ;l:d ATATSAT 35.9 HAT)

I
-
[t

el o STefeasier arAisrel avaery T fefay 9t

AT AT ETZSIUTAY IS Fred ae [ATHESgIeT
THEMY T @A fTeetrbl [EHMT H0T i
frg TET T@T HEUAN g W 5.9 1A
AAATE! deell frg STeAfae@ ATASAT AT
1 = W fHiq j00R #idE 9% TaglE
HAAgH JAET g T Il faad

AU T wireeeETs fahT TR SRR E g )
T AT fatger frafor a2 femmers a12sl-
I FeaFaT F. 7. FES-AEEd F
ety 3FER AEI=y Wed Uve i 9n.
fo. T el HFTEa®!l ST TaaT Saihs
qraY 3% {1, ¥ geaiaes drdasr At et

It aftad GIRY ATIA ARG 4Gt w9

TRy AAiEs J9er 9T fo. 9e wivuen




BT | TSR et aieg aoT gidi® garaef
TATHT AT AT BT2T UUS ZfaTiafey qm.
for. g s wifvaar @ )

I ISRl ifa® e @ fafq 3oy
HIGEAT EATd HE TRAATEF 0 qFe
T fafa #FMid® 9%, 00 @ FEEIEE
IJTEA & WTEhE] G | STATSHEE Jeqiad
faardrr Sofed 33 f .t 933 #of1 =7 fovrer
Tige fagq qame &ET AR AU AR
Ul gEaiad = fgrdl Fa-T2eET
qATE ARET TR JUTEHT qHTied ATHT
g |

TG ATATSATA] IIHT A grggrgmEy fa, &
®, WY RS AW AR G | ATATSTATH] T
AN ®. & A 6% FS S AMG Y FAW ¥ 9F
WE G | T ATHSTATH] BT ATITAATE]
®qHT A T FeeAS FHAM  dedd] G
FTFS AT ATATSAATHT FAETIT ATH AT
qTeq T qTATE qRTHLETAT ST 'T2Sl e
g 9T, {7, ATRT IRITEAT SETgER]
FTAEE TIRF G |

qeT f‘a?a GTaﬁﬁIEr ATATTATE 2EaaR THAI

RECINGIE] feE

49 B 9%

Sifed eTvar R Q war

STATIR & 9o ¥ ¥ av [ Tip

ESIESREREIE RR 94 HAMHeR 9fd Jb-g

SEF qEE q9r 39% (Y3 awm oy fr

e 91 AAWSI € AIGE G0

faera 12 Y IdLl

calgd g, q&I1 P R

staa aiffa It 990 & ¥ frmEre gfq
T

RO A2 3% % 5, faver afee

ST AR v e ot Hg A WY
RIS RIER

Fuier gfawd (FIRR) |94 9%%

IS ICNET & | R0 FIldF %

fufa (COD)

Icqred ufqu ROWR/R/R% I ¥ a9

qeTd e Adty

el AYF TR GUT 06Q/0T 0 T




ﬂ‘ ﬁ% Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited
anferooil detgy @len Sioifdega faifdics

i

(ATl BT @7 Setasd AT %3 WAL

-

et Aoy @ier SEfaed SratsHTE sgda g

13
14

ATl Aew @ Seaed  fAataiggn e IR S T2 3 42T Gl
frafofrs Q.3 R &AWt #39F Slea)

QAT At ArAreE fafre fFat 3daw | Fud 9 e
STETET Fr O T, 7., RTEST-HebTFehel Sdhae | 2digT 9, & | deed edid, ¥

T A g1 F., TerEl e wwey | A A Su 9% & Tirere set
Frof UfeT CITfaiEF qTaw 2% f, ¢ awatgee | e R % M (e wfbe)

AT P BheE TAPEEe B, G | Hd A {RYO A

N y4iaa 9fa+wd (FIRR) | & 0%%
TRRIAT AET AMS FET AT H1H oFfeaqd o f p——

TRUHT AT G | AT AT qAT | e

GRIRIEIE e MK e R BHIE £ Bt R S pe—— Pt R0%<,/0% /30 2
Tetirafes ot fa. & Frf e g ) CHERSRIEEIE] R909/99/R% aH

T ATATSTATATE FeAE B (AT T (TS v
T A G 99 fop. B, =TT 933 .56, Ferrer Aty gemew
T 8T ¥u¥ AT AR 9T fa=[d ITaaordl qiaeastT
Sieq erar 3 Har Por P 3 N e
e o T erg el 3 fo e geeeEsH (= e
e ——— Y ——— qawwmmqwnﬁ#alwirm
- — T ——— fafyer #1d qoo gfqema, ETQI-HMMTM FTY
e R Y UiAeTd, BIZgI-HENMMES A 22K

gfqerd T 9Oy ATE QY gfqed TR weA

—— STl Y ATYRY T 30 6¢/050




AT A %g Y gfqea Frf aee
TTOTF] G | FF ATHING A0 &, R 37" YO
TS AUHT T ATITSAATH] LA AT TF

Im Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited ‘@

HEMRIF AOvel &l Aqamad I G
Roco wiewged g aus ANUE @ | A9
ATATSTATHT TIHT ATE ETESUTER . & &, 33

e 9.9, R0V TREHHT RIRAT HATZTHE]

IS WY ARG AN THT G |

- - ‘B - ’I I - 3
Hﬁmﬁw@wmmﬁmmﬂ%

urfsrt ﬁfﬁ' @:TETT ST TSI
FTART TEAT

(STH @ AT AT, K& HAT)

ERIR: I EEIE] SRECIRIEE] Frrafor 2o«

AT S gEeTET fafaesamT yaiga Y&

faed IeTaT JMAT YT NUH g i Aqre

AT, &THATH SH @Al AAiaqd AT
JRITEAAT AAAT FTH GE 9T q1arEe

foed g fHiq Rogo FER of H
grseTE faza @fve fasr weRpar (PPA)

UNE HeATdE a9 qAl ATarERy AT are
Sd AIgdFl @ A9 fAld 00s F9r ¢
T AYT GOERR, IST, e g g
e, fagd faeme [a9Tee a9 AT

qHT 9~ HZ9% 4l I |

IJq ARl AU Fadngs  SAET
Tafq oY JQW W WH S A9 ATISATH
FA ATAMAT a0 99 F &0 FIS WH

el AYF TR GUT 06Q/0T 0 T



—— STl Y ATYRY T 30 6¢/050

l‘-l Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited
SHmLmal

@ | ATATSTT I THSTRT AT |IiAT AT
gz fa. & mmHY ¥ e A ®. q
g Yo FSHH THH NI A glqagar

FAHABT ST YA, e e qTATeATS (AT,
ATAEE, FEAT MG AT ATALAF AR
GfaaEed] AqITE! FRAEE TIEH G |

TS BTG SI9Y a7qd &, 3 FS 3¢ AT

ETT ATATSIAT YaGTT ATNT ATI9TF I a1

A E &Y Ui GF &9 1T T Ep]
a |

TP ATH ERK:E]

I 28 WY iy

sifea erwrar 4% War

STAHE EF /&R a1 faailfuey

AT ST gaTE M Y gAfue gfd Jdbue
TTETbT ATy ql T 3% [, 3418 90
BRI fr

HelT - 9blT RIECIERR]

faardq e IR

Zaigd JHE, J& i Y

Atya Al I RY Wy frmare wuar
TR ATEA @R &0 |, A Ape
ST gty |ra 9 g0 ard

FUfAq gfawme (FIRR) | 9% 4&%

FUlTd AqaIF ROG Y AT Y,

Jqred q% fuiq

BLCICERC B UIGRE] 005 /03/8 |1 3Y ay
qeTd e Adf

BT AT HeT A #19 9% T @]
FIRAEE T SASHTR! AN~ SaTe® e
FEH 9 TBd "R MA, ST
TeodT AfUEr T sravg® o ey

A YPHATA] WP G | TH AT
Ieutfad fagd Iofems 93 .41 goe dfebe
TR AR ATRA 35.% fFfA. g @@
AU (A UTETEl oA 9d ST

qATE ARET TR JUTEAHT JATE TG, |

Hxemord AHIGIH 3uRgiRica 3Teddldd! drRigE

YRINTT  9THIST®  IAENacadl  ASATIATE

FAAITF SR AT R, ATAITF, AHAS,
FIATAONT AT THITAET (a0~ T&TESHT

f&2 A g | 96 aey f49w WY fqwa-
&/ AT ANYNE GogaT a1 AYTe &®GA]
gqIfad  AEEHT FEE U I EEEE

TFERIHE I4T9 I 9aag a9 THET 9id 944

feqeTs Weadey 0 fa7d, @, fre

SAGEHT T S G | I9 AFAATETS ATHHATY
T A FEEE AR AT dRE
GRINTT  9THISTE  IAEngcadr: grafHEdl

rey, [g9TE arerarer T e aiys
wUAT T GeATE GeAN qATSE  ATUH
S | T a9y fadasr adEe S STHETTE




AT GSHHT TR, e AT Gedi,
FY fq=mea a1 =R fFameears 98T,
R dgd fafag qmAMTE  HRERHEEHT
TegrT, Rre qur qriers e Frdwwar affw
qIT qrEaE® GEAN T GRIRE GrHTeE
STAGENgEH FEAE g&qd A1d. A1 qF

FMEaTar [SEuaH g |

JRING  9rHIids  STeenad  d=aia  Ir.4.
0% /050 HT HUF FEl
EESICCIERTE

for:jom Taree=1 Rifd= aen Ithaiet mIRIsHaA |

el FrEE

o fqra® TEwE T=d F9  APfE T
0% /050 HI UM FEAIDI JHENH T
AT YEhY GETEEl AER] JULTETRT
T STTATSAT qAT AT T FTHIET,
WIUTH! gTiaiad qar [aees Srdaveeas!
TEIIRHT 050 65 8 d U {5 {7:97eF
q@ FUARE @Aeeq [T g
AT | ST RfavAT AT ARTiersT eaa
JEETE TH 0 F¢ TSTEEF 3§ W
qiiEaRTEEd 3 RN TredT aives qiiaias

Ud 9o SR EEAe e qar e
el TTHT S |

Im Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited ‘@

* ‘THEM SAEATEN I ARETE ATHET
T 79 g9 g fafg 08 wemr oR
Taw fad A9 TSHT Al IEEn
ST ATITSIAT T T FHFAA (] FITSTAA]
o1 TOhAT FHTEHH AT | STHAT FHI (]
FHANE®E Higd RIHFATE] Ta ATHT
Ffafase T FTHAT &Y S WhaE I
HTHT T |

== s
{dﬂa.rn! M-em

favTa®T aufee S T4 A9, 098 /050 HT
qfT FEOTRT TS 9Ifad & gTE AT
a3 7. ¢ ferd «ft S9ar anafas Tq=rerE
FHIWT Q¥ ST G/ GAREATE WY
faaeer i g |

el AYF TR GUT 06Q/0T 0 T



l‘-l Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited
SHmLmal

IT.F. 019 /050 HT FHIA T HIE AVUTITHTR]
forem WrAET HEIEAE T WE AT
CENCE I I HIRE I L P E I CR L)
JFIAT P& 99 T R &1 @A/ &A™
A 32 G ¥ g3 QAT W TET ¥ ST
Tiva dur seRr faardfeear grda @
A TEART YeT T fATqET queear Ted
TG T4 9 GEAGAE FEHAATE el

fezusr @ |

Zerrel 1= Tsmml IaTeoid AT Ja<ilol

AR URRIRE R ysiad el
W U geFew A, "HEG, U™
qIT WUAATHET AT TG FH  [qoeT
qrAfAEaT &3 AT G | 9IET ATEY a9 Fu
e ATE F7 TATH ANRYNAETR] GH=ET qT
T fFaees] eFEar qrE qar o9y
TRUTAETHT O faf~T Gedawsl A qr
TRTATRT A1 AT T yifafers qegimT
Y3 TRUH G | ATTITFHAT AR A [T

JUAY JUFIU YINT T HAT TR FHEE

s A 9T a8l 4. 3, ANEERiE iy Sier S
TGS WHa &1
— el TIfYE GTHRY T 20 98/0%0

-
- - N =

JATH T 97 -9, WATF ASH GUSH WAAdT adT
iq Fre

Riang =i srenen as<ion -

I9 FHA AT gaTad &ART =W
FUFEEAlS  (gATRF! @M GEAR TR
ATRE! G | T9 a9 HTE TSR qHE
¥ I ew®! e TAT ATE A= a7 7.
q AT AT ST TGS FEAT AT
AT AT FRTAT qAT ATAAHAT FTEAR
FEAIRT JUqTE IUHLU GIN T GEINT

A e A
g T T -9, AT = Ferem A g gt
Frraforar weosee o f fa g wd i e




Im Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited ‘

IR aen ufdd ferresor/Aarenarmt orifdr
Ha<ial :

ATATSTAT YT STHT EAa J&TT a7 qied
=T qar TFEATHET FRAATE grataEar 6%

o C

fqaer FugeEdr w<d g9 a9 giv fafg=
FAE® WUH G | AE .91 T 7, § ¥ 3
gt o AT Eremee (AT, 7Y, =ieaT,
Maae, 2, em T @MW) T @led e
AT FaT ET A o fafawT ST JaT
jﬁ;quﬁ Wﬁ BT Wq_'ﬁ_ﬁ I IF, oD i Rior afem aasi ;
Hma‘?:ﬁw . ?a::wwf - T 99 T TG T9 G B AT

' QT ST ARONIY JaTewels oAfed T4

@ISAY HaAF 0 faem aiad 9& = T
aifr Arg quegiaEr v s dhEwe zfewe
g1, f. 99 qH=T WD FHEHB ARITHT R0
ST JATEwRdTE SR qNad I TRUFH]

. '- et
FeTT M=t @iy st Frafor

-

fi3a urefiosT cIaemuesiaT As2ial :

19,3090 /050 HT FHHH HATE AT AHT
37 . ¢ ferd 30-3¢ weygdt wuw @y
AIaTEEATE a3 YT 1] THST U T+
fard 9y 9uelT ATRa aFT AR
AT SATefF GEIRT TIF G |

el AYF TR GUT 06Q/0T 0 T



—— STl Y ATYRY T 30 6¢/050

l‘-l Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited
SHmLmal

Jdel JITIGNMD! [SATa :

ARTSTTHR ifad fAAfrer awaHT Jowtad
AEAAFAT FTAR AT TRTFHT T FEAET
SAAAT WWEH ATE TRUMaHT a1 7. 2
MHA gelewAl Aaio ivuEr F#a o Fer

L]

ool oF L
w T LT
A

3109 [dfdea aseioss -

TA FHEE T A IATA. R09%,/050 HT Ui
T TAEEEEG ] A JaT GEaTad]
faf\T=T RIT FTHRAAT FEO [ AT F FEa N
TF G | HIE .97, €7 7. ©, qiichH® S
TAT qHES SAESH] TWH Gedl THATIE
Feqd Wel, IAEcs IR Wdg FAaFT
AT EeATs ATaeTH WAFE AHEE @leg
T, g1 A, % F WFMEEEd H{Ge qioAT
HATP! FTGTAT SATATSTAT TR GIH ITRIGY
T Wid THEAGE Wedd e qdal qs]
q. 9 T HEHTS UHAT FAGD] ATECHMAT dGT
AEATE Geell THATIE TEW qa7 Higer (AT
Tieg FY-309Q Faael QAT ATedF TEIN
TUHT G | AE TG FL A ¥ a9

AT TEEE ATAYIF HHA TR T ATE
AT a7 7. B [T 97 Heag
TARA TelEY ATETIE a9 SR Araiers
FET WIAAT ¥ GoFTeTE AN SR
qIATS® II¢ a9 Avaid b FEfaears
AT NTH G |

Rt § % WAL

g T

[ i o .»-' Iﬁﬁ:ii': ;-“'-;t'_';_j:‘ 1%
¥ i e o ALY

THT Y FAHA ARSI W GIH g
JUST 0 HigAT qAT qEY WEAl g{qARIr-
050 W T4, fFTia TF ATAIRET HIE AT
atafa, ZATHEr ATRAT WifeE SR FeeTs
YA T AT THFT FASIMIT ¥ IR
TAT THTS HTE ACANABT FATSTAT THT TIH

ATE ATESe AT GIaTTepT it il T
VTET @ | ATE ARG E g91 7. q ¥ 3 forg
AT TEFT AT Teehl TR ST AT
ATPfF TEART NUFT @ | AX W AIE A1
agr 7. q ferg medr o fgaEer ot 1w
I GTeXqey Givg T JUART MITHT ¥ ATl F
FTTHT FRU FULCAT HISATE TIEH ATE
qAT TAAT TRUNAHTER M~ FSEEH!
I fthewdrs aifds gwam wfoue g |




'#\“e - -
|m Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited ‘

el AYF TR GUT 06Q/0T 0 T



anfha Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited

LR RRLLEL

TRV FHTAT AFF] Tried TeTge SaRaT

E—— WWWW oWBQ/oTo




l& Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited ‘

e Fre fF3a I 1

~ <

ATE FAtagd TAET Fva

el AYF TR GUT 06Q/0T 0 T



LT
AN ¥ \i ¥
nYor. f

AIE FhE (G490 TEHl HHALREE

— ETE] FIYF HIERT WU 706/050




N NP N N TN N N

D00 0000, \
S 0.4
tetetetete?s

£
:

qITAT ET281 Fea




& www.maihydro.com

Sanima

SANIMA MAI HYDROPOWER LIMITED

Q@ KMC-4, Dhumbarahi,
Kathmandu, Nepal

&' +977-1-4373030, 4372828

£4 sanimamai@sanimahydro.com




	1_Page_001
	1_Page_002
	1_Page_003
	1_Page_004
	1_Page_005
	1_Page_006
	1_Page_007
	1_Page_008
	1_Page_009
	1_Page_010
	1_Page_011
	1_Page_012
	1_Page_013
	1_Page_014
	1_Page_015
	1_Page_016
	1_Page_017
	1_Page_018
	1_Page_019
	1_Page_020
	1_Page_021
	1_Page_022
	1_Page_023
	1_Page_024
	1_Page_025
	1_Page_026
	1_Page_027
	1_Page_028
	1_Page_029
	1_Page_030
	1_Page_031
	1_Page_032
	1_Page_033
	1_Page_034
	1_Page_035
	1_Page_036
	1_Page_037
	1_Page_038
	1_Page_039
	1_Page_040
	1_Page_041
	1_Page_042
	1_Page_043
	1_Page_044
	1_Page_045
	1_Page_046
	1_Page_047
	1_Page_048
	1_Page_049
	1_Page_050
	1_Page_051
	1_Page_052
	1_Page_053
	1_Page_054
	1_Page_055
	1_Page_056
	1_Page_057
	1_Page_058
	1_Page_059
	1_Page_060
	1_Page_061
	1_Page_062
	1_Page_063
	1_Page_064
	1_Page_065
	1_Page_066
	1_Page_067
	1_Page_068
	1_Page_069
	1_Page_070
	1_Page_071
	1_Page_072
	1_Page_073
	1_Page_074
	1_Page_075
	1_Page_076
	1_Page_077
	1_Page_078
	1_Page_079
	1_Page_080
	1_Page_081
	1_Page_082
	1_Page_083
	1_Page_084
	1_Page_085
	1_Page_086
	1_Page_087
	1_Page_088
	1_Page_089
	1_Page_090
	1_Page_091
	1_Page_092
	1_Page_093
	1_Page_094
	1_Page_095
	1_Page_096
	1_Page_097
	1_Page_098
	1_Page_099
	1_Page_100
	1_Page_101
	1_Page_102
	1_Page_103
	1_Page_104
	1_Page_105
	1_Page_106
	1_Page_107
	1_Page_108
	1_Page_109
	1_Page_110
	1_Page_111
	1_Page_112

